
 

 
LANCASTER SELECT BOARD  -  AMENDED* 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
  Prescott Building – Nashaway Room & ZOOM 

Monday, October 2, 2023 
6:00 P.M.  

 
In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and 

broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV 
                                     

Page 1 of 3 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Stephen J. Kerrigan will call the meeting to Order at 6:00 P.M. in the Nashaway Room, located 
on the second floor of the Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Lancaster, MA 
 
Topic: Select Board Meeting 
Time: Oct 2, 2023 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81115278189?pwd=eWhvWEhERStmWFNPRVBJTEpTTnk1dz09  
 
Meeting ID: 811 1527 8189 
Passcode: 361651 
 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,81115278189#,,,,*361651# US (Chicago) 
+16465588656,,81115278189#,,,,*361651# US (New York) 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/khTe9NMD3  
 
Additional materials for Select Board meetings are available at: 
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board/pages/meeting-materials  
 
Residents Have the Ability to Ask Questions via ZOOM. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  
Review and take action on the Select Board’s Meeting Minutes from September 11 & 18, 2023. 
  

III. SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS -   
6:05 PM: Joint Meeting with Lancaster Historical Commission 
7:00 PM: Joint Meeting with Lancaster Board of Health  
 
IV. BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS -   

• Government Study Committee – Town-Wide Survey, Deployment & Information.  
• Set Date(s) for Joint Meeting Proposal with DPW Board/Commissioners. 

 
V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Opportunity for the public to address their concerns, make comments, offer suggestions, or ask questions.  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81115278189?pwd=eWhvWEhERStmWFNPRVBJTEpTTnk1dz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/khTe9NMD3
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board/pages/meeting-materials


 

 
LANCASTER SELECT BOARD  -  AMENDED* 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
  Prescott Building – Nashaway Room & ZOOM 

Monday, October 2, 2023 
6:00 P.M.  

 
In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and 

broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV 
                                     

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
VI. TOWN ADMINISTOR REPORT  

• GRANT AWARDS: Memo Review 
o Formula Grant Award - FY25 $27,258 (COA) 
o Housing Production Grant Award - FY24 $46,600 (Affordable Housing Plan Update) 
o Community Infrastructure Grant – FY24 $80,000 (Community Center) 
o Division of Local Services Community Planning Grant – FY24 $32,000 (DCAMM) 
o Community Compact Grant Award – FY24 $25,000 (Class & Comp. Update) 
o Executive Office of Housing & Economic Development – FY24 $25,000  

(Downtown Revitalization & Wayfinding) 
• Human Resources Updates  

o Treasurer-Collector 
o Community Development & Planning Director 
o Budget & Purchasing Administrator  
o Management Analyst/Asst. Collector (combine proposal resulting in -.75 FTE/-$58K) 

 New Initiative w/Enterprise Fund Accounts 
 Memo of Agreement Draft – Lancaster Sewer District & Select Board  

• Classification & Compensation Study, Update, Timeline for Report & Deliverables 
• DCAMM Property – Sale Partnership Agreement  

o Legislative Update & Needs 
o Initial Visioning Sessions/Ideas for Re-Use and/or Potential RFP to Developers  

• Division of Local Services – Financial Management Review & Update Report (Sept.’23) 
• New Initiatives – Connections with Board & Staff, Availability to Public 

o Office Hours – Regular Hours & Open to Public Monday - Friday 
o Goal Setting, Senior Management Team 
o Regular Agenda Appearances – Pilot Program 

 
 

VII. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY (Vote may be taken)   
• Town Administrator Review  
• Memorial School RFP (re: assessment & reuse potentials) – updated financial information. 
• Kalon Farms – Right of 1st Refusal, continued from 9.18.23 meeting. 
• Accounting/Budget Software (tabled from Select Board Meeting 9.5.23) 
• Update/Review Town-Wide Fees (tabled from Select Board Meeting 9.5.23)  

 
 
 
 



 

 
LANCASTER SELECT BOARD  -  AMENDED* 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
  Prescott Building – Nashaway Room & ZOOM 

Monday, October 2, 2023 
6:00 P.M.  

 
In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and 

broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV 
                                     

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS & RESIGNATION NOTIFICATIONS (Resignation votes not needed) 
 
Resignations 

Board of Health – Denise Hurley  
Community Preservation Act Committee – Kendra Dickenson, Planning Board Representative 

 

Appointments* 
Affirm Planning Board 9/11/23 Appointment of Regina Brown as the Board’s Community 
Preservation Act Committee Representative  

 
 

IX. LICENSES AND PERMITS  
Applications for Town License Public Entertainment on Sunday and Weekdays 
Event: 4th Annual Lancaster Holiday Light Show to be held at the Lancaster Fairgrounds, 318 Seven 
Bridge Road, Lancaster.   
Sponsored by: Rose Darden, Bolton Fair, Inc. & EJ Dean, Fiesta Shows  
Operating Dates: November 24, 2023 – December 31, 2023 
Operating Hours: Sunday – Thursday 5pm-10pm; Friday – Sunday, Holidays 5pm-11pm 
 
X. COMMUNICATIONS 
 Town Offices will be closed on Monday, October 9, 2023, in observance of Columbus 

Day/Indigenous People Day 
 Next Select Board Meetings will be held on Monday, October 16, 2023, and November 6, 

2023 at 6:00pm. 
 Miscellaneous Correspondence & Memorandums  

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS – Unforeseen by the Board 
 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 



APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

LANCASTER SELECT BOARD 
Special Meeting Minutes 

of Monday, September 11, 2023, 8:00 A.M. 
via ZOOM only 

 
ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81481149273           Meeting ID 814 8114 9273 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER     
 
Select Board Chair Stephen Kerrigan called the meeting to order at 8:00AM and advised that the 
meeting was being recorded and broadcast via ZOOM.  
 
Additional materials for Select Board meetings are available at 
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board > Meeting Materials.  
 
Roll call vote taken, Jason A. Allison, absent but expected within minutes of roll call, Alexandra 
W. Turner, present, Stephen J. Kerrigan, present. Also present, Kate Hodges, Town 
Administrator.  
 
II. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY 
 
Lancaster Special Act 2004 – Acknowledgement of Receipt. Question #1: Proponent & 
Opponent Statements, for Lancaster Special Election Ballot scheduled for September 25, 
2023. 
 
Mr. Kerrigan explained the requirement for Proponent and Opponent statements for the upcoming 
ballot. The Proponent language has been written by Joe Gleason of the School Building 
Committee. As no Opponent language has been presented, the Select Board will have Town 
Counsel draft this language. 
 
Mr. Allison moved to accept the Proponent language as presented and to authorize Town Counsel 
to write the Opponent language. Ms. Turner seconded. Ms. Turner asked where these statements 
could be seen; Mr. Kerrigan stated that they would be displayed at public locations and at the 
polling places. Ms. Hodges reviewed the Special Acts of 2004 which created the requirement. Ms. 
Turner had questions; she stated that she will vote against the motion because she has not seen the 
language. Ms. Turner stated for the record that the Board should be helping to inform Counsel.  
 
Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, No; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion 
passed. [2-1-0]. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81481149273
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board


Lancaster Select Board 
Special Meeting Minutes of September 11, 2023 

 2 of 2 
 

III. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 Select Board’s upcoming meetings will be held on September 18, 2023, & October 2, 

2023, both starting at 6:00 PM. 
 Special Town Meeting called for Monday, September 18, 2023. The meeting will be held 

in the Mary Rowlandson and Luther Burbank schools starting at 7:00 PM. 
 Special Town Election called for Monday, September 25, 2023. Polls open from 7am-

8pm. 
 
IV. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Allison moved to adjourn the meeting; Ms. Turner seconded the motion. Vote taken, Jason A. 
Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kathleen Rocco 
Executive Assistant 
       ___________________________________ 

   Alexandra W. Turner, Clerk 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

LANCASTER SELECT BOARD 
Special Meeting Minutes 

of Monday, September 18, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 
Mary Rowlandson Elementary School Auditorium 

 
ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81481149273           Meeting ID 814 8114 9273 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER     
 
Select Board Chair Stephen Kerrigan called the meeting to order at 6:00PM in the Mary 
Rowlandson Elementary School Auditorium Stage, 103 Hollywood Drive, Lancaster, and advised 
that the meeting was being recorded and broadcast via Sterling-Lancaster Cable Television.  
 
Additional materials for Select Board meetings are available at 
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board > Meeting Materials.  
 
Roll call vote taken, Jason A. Allison, present, Alexandra W. Turner, present, Stephen J. 
Kerrigan, present. Also present, Kate Hodges, Town Administrator.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES     
 
Ms. Turner moved to accept the minutes of the September 5, 2023 meeting; Mr. Allison seconded 
the motion. Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, 
Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 
 
III. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY 
 
1. Kalon Farms – First Right of Refusal 
 

Ms. Hodges explained that in August, Kalon Farms sent a required notice of intent to sell a 
two-acre portion of a 4-acre lot lot for residential non-Chapter 61A purposes. She had written 
back because the notice did not meet all necessary requirements, i.e., it was unclear which two 
acres were to be sold. The ANR was received last week; this was approved by the Planning 
Board earlier in the summer. Ms. Hodges had also asked what the plan was for the remaining 
two acres in this parcel, but she has not received a response. The Select Board needs to weigh 
in on whether or not they have interest in acquiring the land, and if so, further action is 
needed. The price of this lot would be about $900,000; Ms. Hodges suggested that in her 
opinion, this purchase would not be in the best interest of the Town. Ms. Turner spoke about 
Chapter 61 and what a powerful tool it has been to protect open space and to help farmers. 
She noted that in the past the Select Board has allowed other bodies to purchase land under 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81481149273
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board


Lancaster Select Board 
Special Meeting Minutes of September 18, 2023 

 2 of 3 
 

Right of First Refusal. Ms. Turner would like, as a matter of policy, to follow up further, with 
the 120 days. Ms. Hodges noted that applications to the Select Board was not complete until 
last week. Ms. Turner would like the Select Board to consistently use the time allocated to do 
something more meaningful, engaging other boards, committees, and interested parties.  
 
Mr. Kerrigan recognized Frank Streeter, Chair of the Planning Board. [Because Mr. Streeter 
was speaking from the audience without a microphone, his statements were not captured on 
the recording.] Mr. Allison suggested that Ms. Turner take the next 30 days to work with the 
Land Trust or other parties. She will report back to the Board at the October 16, 2023 
meeting. 

 
2. FEMA Flood Maps 
 

Ms. Turner had requested that this item be added to the agenda. She noted that recent flood 
maps show changes from previous versions, especially in commercial/industrial areas. Recent 
maps received are a final draft. Ms. Turner would like people to check their property and/or 
their neighboring properties. Ms. Hodges noted that she and the Planning Director had met 
with the GIS people regarding this. 

 
3. Disposition of September 18, 2023 Special Town Meeting Warrant Articles 
 

Mr. Allison moved to endorse Article 1, the New Nashoba Regional High School Building. 
Ms. Turner seconded. Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen 
J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 

 
Mr. Allison moved to recommend affirmative action on Article 2, Water Enterprise 
Commission. Ms. Turner seconded. Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, 
Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 

 
Mr. Allison moved to recommend affirmative action on Article 3, Supplemental Classification 
Plan for Emergency Services. Ms. Turner seconded. Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; 
Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 

 
Mr. Allison moved to recommend affirmative action on Article 4, Amendment to Zoning 
Bylaws – Accessory Apartments. Ms. Turner seconded. Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; 
Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 

 
IV. LICENSES AND PERMITS 
 
Request for use of the Town Hall Auditorium 
 
 Organization: Friends of Thayer Memorial Library 
 Event: Friends of Thayer Memorial Library Annual Book Sale 
 Date of Event Tuesday, September 26, 2023 – Wednesday, October 11, 2023 
 



Lancaster Select Board 
Special Meeting Minutes of September 18, 2023 

 3 of 3 
 

Mr. Allison moved to approve the use of the Town Hall Auditorium by the Friends of 
Thayer Memorial Library for their Annual Book Sale, Tuesday, September 26, 2023 - 
Wednesday, October 11, 2023. Ms. Turner seconded.  Vote taken, Jason A. Allison, Aye; 
Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 

 
V. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 Special Town Election called for Monday, September 25, 2023. Polls open from 7am-

8pm. 
 Select Board’s upcoming meetings will be held on October 2, 2023, and October 16, 2023, 

both starting at 6:00 PM. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Allison moved to adjourn the meeting; Ms. Turner seconded the motion. Vote taken, Jason A. 
Allison, Aye; Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Stephen J. Kerrigan, Aye. Motion passed. [3-0-0]. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kathleen Rocco 
Executive Assistant 
       ___________________________________ 

   Alexandra W. Turner, Clerk 



SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS



John A. Farnsworth, M.S.C.E.
35 Pine Hill Road, Lancaster, MA 01523
603-566-43 17 ( cell-phone ), jfl 1 lb@ao1.com

24 September 2023
Select Board
Prescott Building, 2nd Floor SEP 2
Thayer Drive
70 1 Main Street

Board of Selectmen

Lancaster, MA 01523

c/o: Kate Hodges, Town Administrator

Dear Board Members,

It is my understanding that there is an opening for a member on the Board of
Health to complete a remaining 2 of a 3-year term. Herein, I present myself as a
candidate for the open position.

My preference is to serve until the next election in May 2024 when the remaining
1 -year might be posted for Town Election.

It’s likely the Board knows who I am but unlikely you’ve seen my Vita. Vita
attached.

I am a long-time town resident. Much of my education has been based in Civil
Engineering and Public Health. As a Registered Sanitarian and Certified Soil
Evaluator, Title-5 has been a life-long companion reaching back to the old Article
XI ( circa-1960 ‘s).

It has been both an education and pleasure to work with Jeff Paster, current Board
Chair, during my time as a fonTler Board Member.

My hope is to work closely with Jeff and Melinda Apgar ( member) to see
Lancaster through the upcoming Flu and COVID seasons.

Respectfully submitted and best regards,



John A. Farnsworth, M.S.C.E.
Professional Land Surveyor — Registered Sanitarian

3 5 Pine Hill Road, Lancaster, MA 01523

603-566-43 1 7 (cell)

Professional Summary:
Experience in the preparation, management and delivery of optimum engineering-
based solutions for residential, commercial and industrial site designs. Proficiency
with (but not limited to) AUTOCAD & Microsoft Word.

Education: Worcester Polytechnic Institute
Master of Science, Civil Engineering, 1997
Bachelor of Science, Civil Engineering, 1 98 1 , Chi-Epsilon, 983

Registration: MA Professional Land Surveyor (94 to present ), MA SIT (86)
MA Registered Sanitarian, (MA-1982 to 2020, CT-2005 to present)
MA EIT (ngineer Jn Training, closed book exam, 94)
MA Certified Soil Evaluator, (1995 to present)
MA Certified Title 5 Inspector (1995 to present)

Professional Experience: Protégé to Frank D. DeFalco, PhD, PE, PLS
DeFalco gineering, Services (2005- present, 2018)
Formerly DeFalco Engineering Incorporated (1 986-2005), formerly
DeFalco Engineering Associates, Incorporated (1 982-1 986). Director
of Operations. Responsible for all phases of activity, including:
Managem’t of Field Data Collection, Data Reduction and Storage,
Generation of Record Material, Client Interaction, Administration,
Supply and Finance. 2000+ Engineering Design, Forensic
Investigations and Survey Projects.

Farnsworth gineering Associates, President (1986- present, 2023)
Professional L.S., Registered Sanitarian & Certified Soil Evaluator.

Trowbri4ge gineering, ., Westminster, MA (1992- present, 2017)
Staff Surveyor, Responsible for in-house Surveying.

Blackwell & Associates, Incorporated, Nantucket, MA (1997- 2004)
Staff Sanitarian, Responsible for hundreds of Title 5 & Site Designs

Worcester i.cytechnic Institute ( 1 982-1 983, 1 8mo)
Graduate School, Teaching Assistant, Civil Engineering, Dept.
Assistant to: Surveying, Survey Lab, Hydraulics, Sanitary,
Sanitary Lab, Steel Design and Reinforced Concrete Courses.

Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Lincoln Laboratory
Group 74, Hanscomb Field, Lexington, MA (1976-1979, 36mo)
Photovoltaic Field Tests and Application Program, Technical
Assistant, Grade 5. Inspection and Testing of Field Use on Solar
Photovoltaic Modules, collection & reduction of Data.

Other: Board of Health, Lancaster, MA (2017 to 2023)
Conservation Commission, Lancaster ( early 1970’s)
MA-Notary-Public (1982 to present)
ServSafe Certified (expired, re-cert in Oct-2023)
B.S.A., Eagle Scout

34



John A. Farnsworth, M.S.C.E.
Professional Land Surveyor — Registered Sanitarian

3 5 Pine Hill Road, Lancaster, MA 0 523
603-566-4317 (cell)

John Farnsworth is the Proprietor of Farnsworth Engineering Associates, based in Lancaster.
Massachusetts. 41-years ofCivil Site Design & Land Surveying in a small practice has been the
cradle to grave acquisition and completion ofa variety ofcontinually changing jobs.

In addition to reviewing submissions, Eve devoted three decades to creating them. Success has
hinged on quickly acquiring a subject site, identifying pertinent field information. with its
relationship and compatibility to both record and regulation.

Fielding a variety of specialized equipment to collect as much relevant information as rapidly as
possible for immediate production ofdocurnents has been a priority. Accomplished in a limited
time frame, I have completed 1000’s ofprojects in this manner.

The following is but a small portion ofmy qualifications.

, Public Interactions: Well over 6000 meetings and/or Public Hearings with Boards of Health,
Conservation Commissions. Planning Boards, Dept ofPublic Works, Boards of Appeals,
Boards of Selectmen. State & Federal Agencies across Massachusetts in acquiring permits,
variances and mediation for Clients in every conceivable situation from the creation of
cemeteries to the disposal ofeffluent from Hair Salons.

, Investigations: Sixteen accident re-constructions. Two requiring scale models. A traumatic
head injury case that netted the largest soft-tissue injury award in the history of the
Commonwealth (circa ‘89). Two projects using 3-D data employed in producing animations.

. Supervisor: Managed 10 employees in a Civil-Survey private practice. Supervisor, Inventory
Control Section, New England Grocers Supply, a Teamsters facility.

+ Laboratory Procedures: Group 74, Lincoln Laboratory, Grade-5 TA. Graduate School (WPI)
TA to Water & Wastewater Laboratories. Participated in circa 1980 EPA Grant No. CR-
810241-01-0 during Graduate School at WPI.

4 Project Examples: Post Office Square, Boston, MA. A 70-Lot Subdivision In Southborough/
Westborough, MA. I designed and permitted the entire Southborough project in one-year.

, iL4y Q.fihc Land: John Farnsworth is familiar with the breadth & depth of Massachusetts.
Residence in Cambridge, Worcester, Nantucket, Clinton & Lancaster has complemented a
job pattern extending from Oxford to Rockport and Colrain to Post Office Square, Boston. In
Graduate School at WPI, I took a water sample from every other hydrant in the City of
Worcester.

O qjprn.c. at thc ready: Spectra Precision & Leica GPS Units, Carlson Data Collector,
Topcon, 2-Sokkia and 2-Kern Total Stations, 3-DKM-2 1-Second Theodolites, 3-20-Second
Kern Theodolites, Kern Optical-Plummet, 6-Kern and 6-Ni2 Levels and a Dozen Vernier
Transits, all with Tripods and applicable field gear. N.-Wcji: Kern Total Station with
14,000 linear foot range was used to determine the definitive length of the Worcester Airport
Runway.



BOARDS, COMMITTEES & DEPARTMENT REPORTS



Lancaster currently utilizes a Town Code which is a compilation of 
several MA General Laws, Ordinances and Bylaws that are bound 
together in a large text, by chapter and subject matter, and added 
to/amended as needed by an ECode service through the State. The 
Codes are used and consulted when determining Lancaster 
operations and within what legal parameters or guidelines the Town 
may, or should, operate. The ECode Book is maintained and 
amended by an outside firm and is updated as bylaws and MGL's 
change. 
Some communities choose to have a Municipal Charter as the 
governing document which establishes the municipality's form of 
government, elected and administrative officials, and municipal 
elections and Town boundaries. Charters outline how the 
government is organized and handles public services. It also outlines 
the means and models by which the Town handles its financial 
matters, such as the power to tax and to incur debt or bond. A 
Charter contains information regarding Town boards, commissions, 
and committees. While a Charter 'sets the stage' for how Towns 
operate, specific details and parameters are subsequently outlined by 
Town policies, bylaws and resolutions which are not part of the 
charter but are incorporated into the operational and management 
guides for the Town. These may be amended at Town Meeting or by 
the Town Regulatory authorities similar to the Codes. 
Given the background above, although limited, do you believe 
Lancaster is best served through its current Town Code or 
should the Town seek to draft and enact a formal Town 
Charter? 
         Lancaster should remain governed by its CURRENT CODE 
         Lancaster should seek a NEW TOWN CHARTER 
         I DO NOT KNOW which I would prefer or recommend. 

 I HAVE NO PREFERENCE between a Town Code or Charter.  Government Study Committee Members 

LANCASTER 

GOVERNMENT STUDY 
COMMITTEE 

TOWN-WIDE 
GOVERNANCE SURVEY

Responses collected through Oct.16



  

  

  

1. How many years have you lived in Lancaster? _________

2.  What is your current age?

Under 18                                18-29 30-39 40-49
50-59 60-69 70-79 80-89
90 or older 

3. Are you the parent or guardian of a school-age child(ren) living in
Lancaster?

YES NO 
4. As a parent/guardian of a Lancaster student, which school

category best describes your child(ren)'s enrollment?

Public School     Private School  Charter School 
Vocational-Technical School  Home School 
School Choice (public school outside of Lancaster) 
Other (please specify): __________________________ 

5. Do you currently serve, or have you ever served, on an appointed
or elected Lancaster Board, Committee or Commission?

YES NO 
6. If YES, select all Boards/Committees which you have served with.

Affordable Housing Board of Appeals 
Board of Health  Board of Public Works 

Conservation Comm.    Council on Aging 
CPA  Disability Comm. 
Finance Comm. Historical Comm. 
School Comm  Open Space 
Recreation Comm. Planning Board 

Select Board Other (please specify): ________________ 

7. Lancaster has an Open Town Meeting form of government.
By statute, this requires that participants be present in
person in order to cast their votes relative to Town business.
Do you believe such limitations are appropriate for
Lancaster?

YES NO NO OPINION 

8. Do you regularly attend Town Meeting(s)?
YES. Annual Town Meeting (Typically held the 1st week in May.) 

YES. Special Town Meeting(s) (Held at various times throughout
the year as needed or circumstances require.) 

YES, BOTH 
NO, I do not regularly attend Town Meetings. 

9. Do you regularly vote in the Town's Annual Election,
typically held in May each year, where residents cast their
votes to elect residents to certain Town Board and
Committees?

YES NO 

10. The Select Board (SB) is currently made up of three (3)
members. Communities with a SB/Town Meeting Form of
Government have the ability to elect a three (3) member,
five (5) member or seven (7) member Board. What do you
believe to be the most advantageous number of SB
members for Lancaster?

Three (3) members  
Five (5) members 
Seven (7) members 

I do not have enough info. to make a recommendation. 

I do not have a preference on the number of members. 



 

  

  

  
 

11. Lancaster's Board of Health (BOH) members are elected. Do you
believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should BOH
members be appointed by the Select Board?

The BOH should remain as ELECTED Officials. 
The BOH should be APPOINTED by the Select Board. 
I do not have a preference.  

12. Lancaster's Finance Committee members are elected. Do you
believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Finance
Committee members be appointed by the Moderator, Select
Board (SB) or another appointing authority?

The Finance Committee should remain as ELECTED Officials. 
The Finance Committee should be APPOINTED by the SB.  
The Finance Committee should be APPOINTED by the Moderator. 

I have no preference or opinion on this matter. 
13. Lancaster's Library Trustees are elected. Do you believe this is in

the best interest of Lancaster or should Trustees be appointed by
the Select Board?

The Library Trustees should remain as ELECTED Officials. 
The Library Trustees should be APPOINTED by the SB. 
I do have a preference. 

14. Lancaster's Planning Board members are elected. Do you believe
this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Planning Board
members be appointed by the Select Board?

The Planning Board should remain as ELECTED Officials. 
The Planning Board should be APPOINTED by the SB. 
I have no preference. 

15. Lancaster's Public Works Committee members are elected. Do
you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should
Public Works Committee members be appointed by the Select
Board?

Public Works Committee should remain ELECTED OFFICIALS. 
Public Works Committee should be APPOINTED by the SB. 
I do not have a preference. 

16. Lancaster's Conservation Commission members are
appointed. Do you believe this is in the best interest of
Lancaster or should Conservation members be elected by the
Town Residents?

The Conservation Commission should remain as 
APPOINTED Officials by the Select Board. 
The Conservation Commission should be ELECTED.  
I do not have a preference. 

17. Lancaster's Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) members are
appointed. Do you believe this is in the best interest of
Lancaster or should ZBA members be elected by the Town
Residents?

ZBA should remain as APPOINTED by the Select Board. 
ZBA should be ELECTED Officials. 
I do not have a preference. 

18. Do you believe it to be in the best interest of Lancaster to
require that all Board, Committee and Commission members
be current residents of Lancaster?

YES NO  I have no preference/opinion.  
19. How do you generally receive information about the Town

Lancaster and its Government Operations?
The Town's Website  Town’s Official social media 
Local Newspaper Sterling-Lancaster TV 
Other Citizen-lead Facebook/Online Groups 
In-Person Conversations with Town Staff 
Direct Contact with Town Staff (via Email/Telephone) 
During Town Events or Meetings That I Attend. 
ALL of the Above. Other (please Specify): 

None of the above ________________________ 
Do you have any topic suggestions which you believe the 

Government Study Committee should discuss or investigate? 



PUBLIC COMMENTS



TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT



 

T: 978-365-3326   F: 978-368-8486 
 www.ci.lancaster.ma.us 

Town of Lancaster 
Office of the Town Administrator 

701 Main Street, Suite 1  
Lancaster, MA  01523 

 

KATE HODGES, Town Administrator        khodges@lancasterma.gov 
     

MEMO 
 

To: Select Board & Finance Committee 
From: Kate Hodges, Town Administrator 
Cc: Cheryl Gariepy, Finance Director  
Date: September 25, 2023 
RE: FY24 Grant Awards 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
Last Fiscal Year, my office dedicated a great deal of time to understanding and exploring Lancaster’s 
Municipal Funding strategies and appropriations. It is well known that Lancaster has an extremely high 
volume of properties which are exempt from paying taxes. This is a major factor in budgeting and setting 
a tax rate since the residential tax base is principally responsible for funding all Town Government and 
educational needs. The desire to expand Lancaster’s commercial tax base was the center of focus for much 
of the past few years, and while plans to expand the commercial tax base in Town are currently underway, 
I believe it is incumbent upon all Town staff to seek other sources of revenues for projects and initiatives 
thus reducing the burden on Lancaster residents.  This has been a goal for the Staff and I over these past 
fifteen months and I am happy to say that this last year of grant funding has been some of the strongest 
Lancaster has seen in many years. As a major focus of the administrative office this last Fiscal Year,  
Lancaster applied for thirteen (13) grants and received funding from twelve (12) for a total allocation of 
$313,698.  
 
PREVIOUS AWARDS 
Four (4) of the Town’s submissions were considered ‘rolling’ grants, meaning monies were awarded on an 
application-received basis. One (1) additional grant was awarded after the deadline as explained below. 
For these grants, when the Town received notices of award, the details were provided to the Board in  
meeting packets or as part of the Town Administrator reports.  
 

These previous funded grants for FY23 & FY24 included:  
• $7,500 – Mental Health & Wellness Grant – FUNDED, February 2023 

Community Center outdoor garden space, installation of water line to community garden. 
 

• $12,000 – Recreational Pathways Grant – FUNDED, February 2023 
Used to purchase materials for construction of ADA path from Community Center to Community 
Garden, lower parking area and Pergola Patio Area. 
 

• $67,000 – MA Department of Environmental Protection – NOT FUNDED, March 2023 
Funding for a ¾ time Municipal Assistance Coordinator to oversee and manage an updated Town-
wide Recycling Program maximizing the use of the Town’s recycling center. 
 

• $32,000 – OneStop for Growth – FUNDED, April 2023 

http://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/
mailto:khodges@lancasterma.gov


Page 2 

Planning and visioning sessions and due-diligence relative to the Sale Partnership Agreement for 
the DCAMM property, partnered with MassDevelopment for a Phase I Environmental Analysis 
and a building and grounds survey for master planning preparation. 
 

• $26,340 – Dept. of Elder Affairs – FUNDED, November 2022 (Backdated for July ’22 award) 
These funds were granted in October of 2022 as the State allowed the Town to pass in its annual 
grant application (the “Formula Grant”) past the 2022 deadline. This grant is generally applied for 
in May of each year for an award in September the following fiscal year. The grant was not applied 
for in May of 2022 so when new Health and Human Services Director Kelly Dolan began, she 
phoned the Executive’s Office of EOEA and asked for an extension which was granted. The 
money, approximately $12 per senior according to the most recent census data which for FY23 
was 2,195. The funds were provided to the Treasurer’s office in November of 2022. 
 

In total, from these five (5) funded grants, the Town received $77,840 in award funds. Each of these 
projects are either at or near completion.   
 
FY24 FORMAL AWARDS (not previously reported) 
Eight additional grants were applied for last Fiscal Year for appropriation in FY24. Over the past two 
weeks, the Town has received notifications for six (6) grant awards totaling $235,858 more dollars for 
Lancaster projects and initiatives.  
 
These include: 

• $46,600 - Department of Housing and Development (Housing Production Plan Update) 
This project seeks funding to update Lancaster Housing Production Plan to ensure it highlights the 
work of the community and outlines our continued and future needs. Grant funds shall be used 
under the direction of the Town Administrator’s Office and the Affordable Housing Trust to cover 
the cost of hiring a consultant to assess Lancaster’s current housing inventory and to update the 
Town’s previous production plan including authoring any changes to ensure compliance with 
local, state, and federal regulations. 
 

• $80,000 - Community Infrastructure Grant (Community Center) 
This project will review and make improvements in the Community Center Restrooms and create 
an entranceway for the decommissioned shower on the first floor. These requirements must be 
made in order for the Community Center to be considered an emergency shelter. Additional funds, 
once the restrooms and shower room are complete, will be put toward an engineering design for 
HVAC mini splits throughout the first floor and stage area and for hardwiring a future Generator 
which, if continued through fruition, will be the final set in satisfying the requirements needed for 
the Community Center to be deemed a public shelter for emergency and weather events.  

 

• $32,000 - Division of Local Services Community Planning Grant  (DCAMM Master Vision) 
This project will fund Phase II of the Town’s Visioning and Environmental Assessments for the 
DCAMM property as Lancaster and the State work through the Special Legislation contained 
within the Sale Partnership Agreement approved by Town Meeting in 2022 and ratified again at 
Annual Town Meeting in May of this year. 
 

• $25,000 - Community Compact Grant; HR Best Practices (Class & Comp Plan Update) 
This project will fund consultant and research work conducted by employees of the Collins Center 
for Public Government (Part of UMASS Boston) as they review job requirements, essential 
functions and physical job descriptions for nearly fifty (50) benchmark positions in Town 
Government. The focus will be shared between Union and Non-Union personnel as Lancaster 



Page 3 

seeks to ensure job descriptions and minimum requirements relative to Town positions are 
consistent with the municipal market and provide us the best opportunity to attract and retain 
professional and highly skilled and educated individuals for Lancaster.   

• $25,000 - Executive Office of Economic Development (Downtown Revitalization & Wayfinding) 
This project will fund consultant services as part of the State’s Downtown Initiative Program. 
These funds will be used to assist the Town in wayfinding and community branding with a 
particular focus on the ‘downtown’ style areas of our community. Wayfinding and Placemaking 
services help unify communities and provide a sense of connectivity and belonging, particularly 
for those who are visitors. Once this report is complete, the Town will be eligible for additional 
grant funding opportunities through the State’s Executive Office of Development. 
 

• $27,258 – Dept. of Elder Affairs  
This grant is based on the 2020 census population data for Lancaster residents over 60 years of 
age. That amount equals 1,947 residents who are considered seniors and, for FY24, the per senior 
grant amount has increased from $12 to $14 per Senior.  
 

While I realize the mere addition of these funds do not alleviate the financial constraints of the Town 
completely, I hope the board and residents feel some assurances in knowing that Town staff have been, 
and shall continue to be, committed to seeking out and applying for grants to subsidize vital programs and 
town initiatives. While these funding opportunities are tremendously important, they are not without cost 
– specifically in staff time and effort. Despite that, I continue to believe that dedicating staff time, 
including my own, to grant endeavors will continue to be a worthwhile endeavor. I hope the Select Board 
and Finance Committee members will support and champion these types of activities as they are both vital 
and necessary for the Town operations. As you contemplate your annual Board and Town goals and 
objectives inside and outside of the FY25 financial outlook, I would ask you highlight some of the work 
done and needed in terms of grant administration as a goal for the upcoming period.  
 
In closing, I am proud and excited to announce to you all that for FY24, Lancaster has been awarded 
additional funds equaling nearly $314,000 ($313,698) to be used for projects and Town-Wide initiatives 
which otherwise would have been cancelled or deferred due to lack of funding.  
 
Please let me know if you need anything more from me on this. 
 
Thank you. 



  Collector/Treasurer 
 1 Town of Lancaster  

COLLECTOR-TREASURER 
 

Department:      Finance     Salary Grade:   Grade 15 
Reports To:       Finance Director     FLSA Status:   Exempt 
Appointed By:  Town Administrator     Date:                July 2023 
 
GENERAL SUMMARY:  
Under the general oversight of the Finance Director, the Treasurer-Collector provides highly 
skilled, technical, and supervisory work in the collection of all monies paid to the Town. As 
Collector, the individual oversees and manages all Town receipts, bonds, borrowing 
authorizations and expenditures. As Treasurer, the individual supervises and administers all 
Town borrowing and care/custody of tax title properties.  

 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONSi: 
Plans, directs, and supervises the work of the Collector/Treasurer’s Office. Oversees billing and 
collection of real estate, personal property, and excise taxes; water and sewer user fees; liens; 
and other federal/state/municipal fees and charges.  Maintains records of accounts.  Transmits 
funds to Treasury.  Reconciles commitment books with Town Accountant. 
 
Enforces laws regarding delinquent tax accounts; prepares required forms and documents for tax 
taking; computes interest and posts abatements; handles preparation of municipal liens for banks 
and attorneys. Responsible for tax titles, receipt of payments, discharge of tax titles, foreclosure 
sales or legal processes relative thereto. 
 
Oversees the investment of all Town funds.  Maintains constant vigilance of the Town’s 
investments, cash position including cash flow projections; evaluates various investment or 
borrowing options.  Consults with bankers and advisors regarding investment strategies and 
timing. 
 
Maintains custody of securities of town and trust funds.  Accounts for income from investments 
and fund portfolios.  Receives deposits from all sources having to do with town business.  
Reconciles statements and makes deposits, transfers fund, pays bills, and invests Town funds. 
 
Supervises the preparation and issuance of Town payroll.  Processes reports and payments for 
employees’ insurance, pension and benefit plans offered by the town including cafeteria plans. 
Administers group health, life, and disability and county retirement system. 
 
Prepares monthly, quarterly, and annual statements relative to cash, investments, tax title, 
foreclosures, payroll, employee benefits, and debt obligations.   
 
Assists in the preparation of annual reports, capital improvement program and annual budget; 
advises Town Administration on budget-related matters. Regular attendance and punctuality at 
the workplace is required. 
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITY: 
Supervises one full time Assistant Treasurer-Collector and certain Administrative Clerks as 
assigned or as situations dictate. Manages employees consistent with the Town’s Personnel 
Bylaw and applicable Policies and Procedures and with AFSCME Local 3720 Clerical Unit’s 
Collective Bargaining Agreement. 



  Collector/Treasurer 
 2 Town of Lancaster  

EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE: 
Education at or equal to a master’s degree in accounting, finance, business administration, or 
other related field plus at least five years of progressively responsible experience in municipal 
finance. Experience as a CPA and with supervisory work preferred but not required. Any 
equivalent combination of education and experience accepted. 
 
Special Requirements include the incumbent’s ability to be bonded and Certification as a Town 
Collector and Treasurer through the Massachusetts Collector/Treasurer Association. Those 
without current certification must possess the ability to obtain certification upon hire consistent 
with the requirements outlined herein: https://masscta.com/page/certificationinformation.  
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS & ABILITIES: 
Complete working knowledge of the principles and practices of financial management and 
specific knowledge of the legal controls, methods, and procedures of municipal finance. 
Thorough knowledge of computer applications for accounting and financial management, GAAP 
and UMAS and investment markets. 
 
Exercises independent judgment and initiative in the planning, administration, and execution of 
divisional services, in the interpretation and application of laws, regulations and procedures, and 
in the direction of personnel. Performs duties in accordance with state statutes and local bylaws. 
 
Ability to establish and maintain effective and harmonious working relationships with Town 
officials and department heads/division managers, members of the community, state and federal 
agencies and the public. Ability to communicate effectively in written and oral form.  
 
Ability to establish and maintain complex financial record keeping systems. Ability to prioritize 
multiple tasks and deal effectively with interruptions, often under considerable time pressure.  
Ability to prepare and administer budgets and to prepare financial reports.  
 
WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDSii: 
Work is performed under typical office conditions not subject to extreme variations of 
temperature, noise, or orders, etc.  Regularly called upon to operate a computer, calculator, 
telephone, copier, facsimile machine, and other standard office equipment. 
 
Makes frequent contact with other Town departments/boards/commissions, Town Counsel, 
attorneys, tax services, retirees, members of the banking community, and the public; 
communicates in person, by telephone and via standard reports.  Contacts require considerable 
persuasiveness and resourcefulness to influence behaviors and outcomes. 
 
Incumbent has access to department-level and town-wide confidential information including 
personal information about citizens and property whereby the application of appropriate 
judgment, discretion and professional office protocols is required. Errors in judgement or 
practice could result in significant legal costs, loss of services, and could have significant town-
wide financial repercussions. 
 

 
i The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that 
may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work 
is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position. 

https://masscta.com/page/certificationinformation


  Collector/Treasurer 
 3 Town of Lancaster  

 
ii The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. May spend a large portion of shift standing at the counter.  
Lifts/moves objects weighing up to 10 pounds.  Files and types on a keyboard at a moderate speed.  Communicates 
verbally and in writing.  Manually operates all office equipment and machines.   
 
This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee. It is used as 
a guide for personnel actions and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change. 
 



Community Development & Planning Director 
Last Updated: August 2023  

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING  
 

Department:      Planning & Community Development Salary Grade:   Grade 15 
Reports To:       Town Administrator    FLSA Status:   Exempt 
Appointed By:  Town Administrator     Date: August 2023 
 
GENERAL SUMMARY:  
The purpose of this position is to perform professional and administrative duties in planning, 
organizing, coordinating, and administering the Town’s planning, land use, and community 
development functions and activities; all other related work as required.  The Community 
Development & Planning Director is responsible for maintaining and improving upon the 
efficiency and effectiveness of all areas under his/her direction and control. 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: i 
Plans, organizes, and directs all Planning Department activities.  In conjunction with the Board, 
establishes planning goals and priorities.  Develops, recommends, and implements Planning 
Department policies and procedures.   
 
Coordinates Planning Board and Zoning Board of Appeals meetings. Serves as professional 
advisor and administrative staff to both boards by coordinating meeting agendas, attending 
meetings to provide technical information, and responding to inquiries, requests, and complaints. 
Conducts studies, prepares reports and recommendations, and carries out Board decisions. 
 
Provides technical assistance and guidance to agencies and citizens.  Conducts planning studies 
regarding future development in Town.  Reviews existing planning and zoning guidelines and 
by-laws and makes recommendations for revisions.  Develops and maintains computerized data 
base for planning involving traffic engineering, census, economic data, mapping, etc.  Serves as 
staff liaison between the Planning Board and other Town departments and agencies. 
 
Develops the department’s capital and operating budget.  Ensures that department operates 
within budgetary constraints.  Establishes and maintains appropriate records and reports. 
Assesses staff performance and progress relative to established goals.   
 
Recommends new approaches, policies, and procedures to effect continual improvement of 
efficiency and effectiveness of Planning Department and the services provided.  Performs 
research and prepares documentation for Board.  Develops material for public presentations. 
 
Develops and implements long-range planning goals and strategies; coordinates grant-funded 
programs for Town departments and Boards as requested or assigned.  
 
Monitors and directs all community and economic development activities including business 
retention, industrial, commercial, and residential rehabilitation, and development.  Supplies 
research and statistical material for use by existing industries and those considering investing in 
the Town. 
 
Regular attendance and punctuality at the workplace required; performs similar or related work 
as required, directed or as situation dictates. 
 



Community Development & Planning Director 
Last Updated: August 2023  

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITY: 
Supervises Departmental Staff including the Town’s Conservation Agent/Assistant Director and 
a full-time Administrative Assistant. Manages employees consistent with the Town’s Personnel 
Bylaw and applicable Policies and Procedures and with AFSCME Local 3720 Clerical Unit’s 
Collective Bargaining Agreement. 
 
EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE: 
Education at or equal to a master’s degree in urban/regional planning or other related field 
desirable plus at least five years of progressively responsible planning and/or community 
development experience at a local, regional, or state level. Any equivalent combination of 
education and experience will be considered. 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS & ABILITY: 
Thorough knowledge of the principles and practices of municipal planning and community 
development including familiarity of applicable state laws including Open Meeting Law, Public 
Records, Zoning Act, Subdivision Control Law, etc.   
 
Experience dealing with federal, regional, and state economic development programs and good 
working knowledge of computer systems and common software packages.   
 
Ability to recognize Town-wide priorities and work cooperatively to support their 
accomplishment.  Capability in analyzing complex issues and developing relevant and realistic 
plans, programs, and recommendations to the Town Administrator.   
 
Skill in reading and understanding detailed engineering plans.   
 
Proficiency in interacting with members of the public and competency in communicating 
effectively in written and verbal form.   
 
Must possess a high degree of aptitude relative to details and accuracy; ability to work 
effectively under time constraints to meet deadlines essential.   
 
WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDS:ii 
Work is performed under typical office conditions where the noise levels are low to moderate, 
but subject to interruptions by customers and phone calls. Position requires attendance at/for 
evening meetings including Planning Board and Board of Appeals Meetings. May be called upon 
to attend Conservation Commission meetings as requested or in the absence of the Conversation 
Agent.  
 
Makes frequent contact with the public, and other Town employees, board/commission 
members, attorneys, professional consultants, and state/regional agencies.  Contacts are by 
phone, correspondence, and in person; contacts require some persuasiveness and resourcefulness 
to influence the behavior of others. 
 
Has access to department-related confidential information, requiring the application of 
appropriate judgment, discretion, and professional protocols. Errors in judgment could result in 



Community Development & Planning Director 
Last Updated: August 2023  

reduced levels of service, cause confusion and delay, adversely affect public relations, and/or 
result in financial and legal repercussions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
iThe essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may 
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is 
similar, related or a logical assignment to the position. 
 
ii The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. May spend a large portion of shift standing at the counter.  
Lifts/moves objects weighing up to 10 pounds.  Files and types on a keyboard at a moderate speed.  Communicates 
verbally and in writing.  Manually operates all office equipment and machines.   
 
This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee. It is used as 
a guide for personnel actions and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change. 
 



BUDGET & PURCHASING ADMINISTRATOR 
 

Department: Finance Salary Grade: Grade 9 
Reports To: Finance Director FLSA Status: Exempt 
Appointed By: Town Administrator Date: July 2023 

 
GENERAL SUMMARY: 
Under the direction of the Finance Director, performs a variety of organizational and technical work 
related to public procurement, bidding, project finance administration; oversees the development, 
administration, and analysis of all Town Budgets and funds. 

 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONSi: 
♦ Assists in the coordination and oversight of Lancaster’s annual budget development process for General 

Fund, Enterprise, Special Revenue and Capital budgets. Prepares municipal personal service budgets and 
assists departments in developing expense budgets. Reviews departmental budget requests for 
completeness, accuracy, and compliance with procedures and guidelines; and compiles consolidated 
budget for Town Administrator use. 

♦ Prepares budget documents, supporting materials and presentations for internal meetings, financial 
outlook reports and use by the Town Administrator at Finance Committee and Select Board hearings; 
provides staff support to Town Finance divisions. 

♦ Drafts and advertises for public acquisitions, purchases, requests for proposals and bids consistent 
with M.G.L. Ch.’s 7C, 30B, 39M, and 149. Maintains records of all procurement processes and 
contracts. Updates Town Website, CommBuys, Central Register and other required systems relative to 
legal notifications consistent with MA Law and best practices. 

♦ Maintains and updates the Vadar software used for budget development including templates, forms, 
workflows, user access and permissions. 

♦ Regularly monitors annual budgets throughout the fiscal year once they have been approved and 
adopted by the Town. Assists the Town Accountant with Budget loads and adjustments in the Vadar 
General Ledger. 

♦ Analyzes financial and budget related matters and conducts research as necessary or assigned. 
Compiles data from statistical studies and budget analysis, maintains database of budget history, and 
develops multi-year forecasts of revenues and expenditures in order to assist in budget preparation and 
analysis. Provides analytical support for the development and review of programs and policies 
affecting the budget. 

♦ Prepares quarterly and year-end budget reports for Town Management use; depicts rates of spending 
versus budget and identifies potential budget problems as needed or requested. Provides and reviews 
budget numbers in advance of Town Meeting and may assist with budget-related questions during 
Town Meeting. 

♦ Reviews and keeps current on new or revised laws and regulations related to procurement, finance, 
accounting and reporting which may affect the Town. Responds to finance and budget related inquiries 
and requests from staff, management, and the public. 

♦ Performs special projects and other related duties as required, directed, or as the situation dictates. 
Regular attendance at the workplace is required. Attendance at public meetings outside of normal 
business hours is occasionally required.  

 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITY: 



NONE 
 
EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE: 

♦ Educational experience at or equal to a bachelor’s degree with at least two years of responsible, 
relevant experience in an accounting, finance, or business-related discipline.  

♦ Candidate must have or possess the ability to obtain within the first twelve months of hire, a valid 
Massachusetts Certified Public Purchasing Official (MCPPO) License issued through the Inspector 
General’s Office. 

♦ Any equivalent combination of education and experience accepted. 
 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS & ABILITIES: 
♦ Familiarity with the principles and practices of public administration, financial accounting and 

reporting, pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, codes and regulations and principles and 
procedures of confidential and/or legally required record keeping. 

♦ Ability to operate a computer and various software packages necessary for assigned duties.  

♦ Proficiency in compiling, manipulating, and analyzing large amounts of financial data with accuracy 
and attention to detail.  

♦ Capability in understanding and developing processes and structures related to financial 
management, procurement, budgeting, and financial project oversight.  

♦ Competence in communicating clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing, and in maintaining 
effective relationships. 

WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDSii: 
Work is performed in a normal office environment, not subject to extreme variations of temperature, 
noise, odors, etc. Operates computer, printer, photocopier, scanner, and other office equipment. Work 
requires extended periods of sitting, reaching, typing, and mousing, which requires eye-hand 
coordination and finger dexterity. 
 
 

 
 

i The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by people assigned to do this 
job. The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all responsibilities and duties required. The omission of specific 
statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position. 
External and internal applicants, as well as position incumbents who become disabled as defined under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, must be able to perform the essential job functions (as listed) either unaided or with the assistance of a reasonable 
accommodation to be determined by management on a case-by-case basis.  
 
ii This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee, and is subject to change 
by the employer, as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. CORI Screening and Background Check 
Required. 



Town of Lancaster, MA Page 1 of 2 
 

Management Analyst 
 
Department: Finance/Treasurer-Collector Salary Grade:   Grade 11  
Reports To: Treasurer-Collector FLSA Status:    Exempt  
Appointed By: Town Administrator Date:                Sept 2023  
    
GENERAL SUMMARY: 
Under the direction of the Collector-Treasurer, the position will be responsible for the integration and 
billing of all Enterprise and Special Revenue Accounts including those of the Lancaster Water and 
Sewer Divisions. The Management Analyst will serve as the Assistant Collector and, as such, shall be 
responsible for supporting the functions of the Town collector including acceptance and accounting for 
all town funds. As a professional in the field, the incumbent shall also be tasked with overseeing certain 
financial projects, reports and developing solutions for enterprise billing and collection efforts.  The 
Analyst is responsible for improving upon the efficiency and effectiveness of their area of expertise. 

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 

External and internal applicants, as well as position incumbents who become disabled as defined under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, must be able to perform the essential job functions (as listed) either unaided or with the assistance of a 
reasonable accommodation to be determined by management on a case-by-case basis. 
 

♦ Experience Using Vadar, including integration to and from legacy systems relative to collections, 
billings, and meter reading to generate bills. 

♦ Demonstrated skill with business and technical requirements analysis, business process 
modeling/mapping, methodology development, and data management. Quarterly billing of real 
estate, water, and sewer. Develop and prepare financial and statistical reports and evaluate utility 
rates. 

♦ Experience in the operation of software, and standards, as well as data retrieval methodologies 
applications. Collection of payments for all taxes, water, and sewer usage in person, by mail, and 
electronically then posting to financial software.  

♦ Extensive practical knowledge in import/export data for use in report software, spreadsheets, graphs, 
and flowcharts. Prepare weekly turnovers of receipts to Treasurer and Accounting office. 

♦ Strong verbal and written communication skills, including an ability to communicate with both 
commercial and resident audiences. 

♦ Ability to lead and elicit technical specification working sessions with functional and vendor teams, 
gathering information, and building understanding about current and future system needs. 

♦ Ability to effectively prioritize and execute tasks while consistently and reliably meeting deadlines. 
Monthly reconciliations of collector, treasurer, and accounting offices. 

♦ Attends Massachusetts Collectors-Treasurers Association (MCTA) meetings to keep up to date on 
any important changes to municipal finance regulations and satisfy annual Certified (CPE) 
requirements necessary to acquire certifications. 

♦ Organizes key projects and initiatives; creates and maintains comprehensive project documentation to 
memorialize progress. 

 
 

 
 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITY: 



Administrative Systems Analyst 
 

Town of Lancaster, MA Page 2 of 2 

May provide functional oversight to vendors, work teams or focus groups relative to certain projects and 
initiatives.  
 
EDUCATION & EXPERIENCE: 
♦ Bachelor’s degree in accounting, finance, business, or public administration plus at least two (2) 

years of experience working with accounts payable, billing or utility systems. Any equivalent 
combination of education & experience that provides the knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform 
the required duties of the position in lieu of the above-mentioned requirements will be considered. 

♦ Experience in municipal government and municipal system billing, configuration, and accounts 
payable preferred.  

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS & ABILITIES: 
 

♦ Desire for continuous process improvement and optimization of technology. Familiarity in data 
collection, analysis, and the ability to deliver concise and accurate reports. Must possess a flexibility 
and willingness to explore unique and innovative options when faced with barriers.  
 

♦ Effectively able to plan, coordinate and manage multiple projects at one time. Highly self-motivated 
and able to work independently, combined with good judgment regarding when to check in with a 
supervisor. 

 

♦ Excellent organizational, time management and problem-solving skills.  Ability to work with a high 
level of detail; ability to prioritize multiple tasks and deal effectively with interruptions. Ability to 
identify and analyze complex issues and to develop appropriate recommendations.  

 

♦ Excellent communication skills, particularly in writing. Ability to document, write procedures, and 
present information in a meaningful and impactful way.  Ability to maintain confidentiality and use 
discretion on how information is shared. Ability to present and inform others about programs, 
initiatives, and development opportunities. 
 

♦ Proficiency with a wide variety of software applications including Windows, Microsoft Office, Vadar 
and other online application insurance and grant administration systems. 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
 

Normal office environment, not subject to extreme variations of temperature, noise, odors, etc.  Majority 
of work is performed in a moderately noisy work environment, with constant interruptions.  Frequently 
subjected to the demands of other individuals and the volume and /or rapidity with which tasks must be 
accomplished. 
 
Operates computer, printer, video display terminal, keyboard, calculator, telephone, copier, facsimile 
machine, and all other standard office equipment requiring eye-hand coordination and finger dexterity. 
Balancing, crouching, grasping, pulling, reaching, and stooping may also be required. 
 
 
The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by people assigned to 
do this job. The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all responsibilities and duties required. The omission of 
specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment 
to the position.  
 

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee, and is subject to 
change by the employer, as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. 
 



 

  Page 1 of 2 

THE TOWN OF LANCASTER 
& 

LANCASTER SEWER COMMISSION 
 

MEMOARANDUM OF AGREEMENT  FOR PERSONNEL SERVICES 
 

September 2023 
 

WHEREAS, The Town of Lancaster (the "Town") acting by and through its Select Board, 
with a principal address of 701 Main Street, Suite 1, Lancaster, MA and the Lancaster Sewer 
District, acting by and through its Sewer Commissioners (the “Commission”), with a principal 
address of 2086 Main Street Lancaster, MA agree that engaging and employing the services of 
qualified and professional people is of great benefit to Town operations and for those who wish to 
use Town services or amenities offered to them by and through the Town; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town employs capable and professional managers to oversee Town 
finances, billing, transaction details, accounts payable and bill audits for municipal services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District currently pays for certain services provided by Town staff within 

the Finance Department, calculated based on collection rates, and, moreover, the District is 
charged with managing Sewer-related billing and accounting matters as an established District 
since 1967; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission relies on the Town’s Water Division to aggregate and 

disseminate water usage to Commission staff monthly so they may generate bills for District 
Customers; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town folded the Town Water Division accounting services into the 

Treasury/Finance operation in 2006, and seeks to absorb those duties and responsibilities from 
the Sewer District into that of the Treasurer-Collector’s Office, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission currently pays at least one employee an annual sum of 

approximately $47,000 to perform the collection and billing needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town is willing to partner with the Commission to absorb responsibilities 

for a sum less than what the District is currently paying; and  
 
WHEREAS, the incorporation of these duties would result in a savings to the District which 

may be used for improvements or expansion efforts for District infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town seeks to create a more centralized means of collecting and 

accounting for payments to/from Town accounts, both General and Enterprise consistent with the 
State’s Department of Labor Financial Management Audit recommendations from 1999 and 
recently updates in September 2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, the parties agree that the ability for Town Water and Sewer services to be 

aggregated and accounted for under one auspice will not only increase efficiency and  
effectiveness of the Divisions, but will ensure greater customer service and availability of staff to 
answer questions, or accept payments, during the workweek and other regular hours for Town 
business and staff;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following: 

 



 

  Page 2 of 2 

1. The Sewer District Commissioners shall pay the Town $25,000 annually, paid on or around 
July 1st of each year with the execution of this Fiscal Year which shall be paid upon 
acceptance and ratification of this MOU by the parties, for administrative services and 
accounts payable necessities as needed for the District’s billing. 

 
2. The Town’s Deputy Collector/Management Analyst (DC-MA) shall absorb duties related to 

sewer billing into their daily jobs including tasks associated with meter reading, generating 
bills, calculating rebates or refunds, developing and positing accounts payable systems, 
generating payment logs for Commission use and apprising the Treasurer-Collector of those 
accounts which are in arrears and require Town Staff notifications, takings or leans assigned.  

 
3. The DC-MA shall be an employee of the Town of Lancaster covered by the Town’s Personnel 

Bylaw and subject to the protections and provisions therein. 
 

4. The Commission may request, from time to time, additional services which may be needed for 
the District’s operation outside of those outlined in #2 herein; however, these requests are to 
be made, in writing, to the Town’s Finance Director who serves as Department Head. 

 
5. The District shall continue to pay the Town for all other services which have been part of the 

agreement and partnership between the District and the Town since 2006 including matters 
involving Leins, Tax Taking and other Financial oversight. 

 
6. This agreement may be terminated by either party with at least six (6) months’ notice to the 

other, delivered by certified US mail with return receipt requested, and unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing per clause #5 herein, this MOU shall automatically renew each Fiscal 
Year. 

 
7. The Town shall integrate a fully executed version of this Agreement into the Town Budget and 

Treasury Reports within two weeks (14 days) of signing unless agreed to by the parties, 
relative to an alternative timeline. 

 
SIGNED by the authorized representatives of the Town of Lancaster and the Lancaster Sewer District 

Commission below this ____ day of September 2023. 
 
for the Town of Lancaster       for the Lancaster Sewer District 
 
By: __________________________    By: _______________________ 
 
Steve Kerrigan, Select Board Chair    Printed: ____________________ 
 
        Dated: _____________________ 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 
Kate Hodges, Town Administrator  
 
Dated: _______________________   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LANCASTER 
 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REVIEW UPDATE 

 
SEPTEMBER 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
DLS | Financial Management Resource Bureau 
100 Cambridge Street, Boston, MA 02114 
www.mass.gov/dls 
 
Theo Kalivas, Project Manager 
Kasey Bik, Project Manager 

http://www.mass.gov/dls


 

Geoffrey E. Snyder 
Commissioner of Revenue 
 
Sean R. Cronin 
Senior Deputy Commissioner 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 18, 2023 
 
Select Board 
Prescott Building 
701 Main Street 
Lancaster, MA 01523 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
I am pleased to present the enclosed Financial Management Review Update for the Town of 
Lancaster. It is my hope that our guidance provides direction and serves as a resource for local officials 
as we work together to build better government for our citizens. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the report, please contact Zack Blake, Financial Management 
Resource Bureau Chief, at (617) 626-2358 or blakez@dor.state.ma.us. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
 

Sean R. Cronin 
Senior Deputy Commissioner 

 

mailto:blakez@dor.state.ma.us


 



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................................... 1 
RECOMMENDATION STATUS SUMMARY................................................................................................ 6 
PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................................................................. 7 
NEW RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................................................................. 13 

Consider Key Structural Changes Through the Government Study Committee .............................. 13 
Revisit the Agreement with the Lancaster Sewer District ............................................................... 14 
Plan for Succession in Finance Departments ................................................................................... 14 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS ........................................................................................................................ 15 
 
 



 
 



1 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
At the request of the select board, the Division of Local Services (DLS) Financial Management 
Resource Bureau (FMRB) assessed Lancaster’s implementation of recommendations from our 1999 
Financial Management Review and provided new recommendations based on current observations. 
As part of this update, we conducted interviews with the chairs of the select board and finance 
committee, town administrator, finance director/accountant, treasurer/collector, and assessor. We 
reviewed town financial data and other financial records. Throughout this project, we also consulted 
with the Division of Local Services’ Bureau of Accounts (BOA) and Bureau of Local Assessment (BLA). 
 
Lancaster is a small, Worcester County community of 8,455 residents. Lancaster has historically been 
a rural community with significant agricultural interests, supported most recently by town meeting 
passing a bylaw designating it a right to farm community in 2009. The town’s nature has made it 
attractive to a number of tax-exempt organizations, such as a small private college and several 
religious organizations. Furthermore, the state and federal government own a significant portion of 
the total land in Lancaster, which leaves approximately half of Lancaster’s land tax-exempt and not 
producing revenue for the town. Lancaster is also a member of the Nashoba Regional School District 
and the Minuteman High School. 
 
In 1999, DLS was invited by the select board to perform a Financial Management Review. The report’s 
main findings centered around a few broad financial and organizational issues. At that time Lancaster 
had a history of insufficient planning for financial reserves, leading to negative free cash certifications 
in prior years. There were also significant capital projects on the horizon, highlighting the need for a 
robust capital planning and budget process. The town’s general organizational structure was 
described as decentralized, with siloed departments operating without active collaboration or 
strategic planning. In addition, the town accountant was a part-time position not available during 
regular business hours, further handicapping Lancaster’s day-to-day financial analysis and planning 
capability. The town’s horizontal structure and loosely defined lines of accountability left it 
underequipped to deal with its financial challenges. 
 
In 2023, Lancaster is on better footing than it was two decades ago, although some issues remain. 
With regard to reserves, the town has reversed its previous position and has maintained healthy 
amounts of free cash and stabilization fund balances since FY2013, and has been maintaining a capital 
stabilization fund since FY2017. While the town’s official organizational structure is not radically 
different, a special act in 2002 established a full-time finance director/town accountant position, 
strengthening and partially centralizing financial operations. The select board and new town 



2 
 

administrator have sought to create a formal operating and capital budget process by consolidating 
budget preparation through the town administrator’s office. However, this has caused tension with 
the finance committee, which has historically handled significant portions of the budget process, 
despite bylaws outlining an advisory role for the committee. While we continue to recommend 
centralizing budget planning through a professional administrator or manager, Lancaster’s legacy of 
horizontal structure and uncodified processes has hindered meaningful changes. Recognizing these 
hurdles, the town has established a charter review committee tasked with evaluating charters with a 
formal budget process, including the roles and responsibilities of the select board, administrator, 
finance committee and other stakeholders. 
 
Financial Overview 
 
Lancaster’s FY2023 general fund budget was $26.7M, not including a $2.1M water enterprise fund 
and a $145K renewable energy (solar) enterprise fund. The town has also adopted the Community 
Preservation Act (approved by the voters in 2022), with an estimated $162K in revenues for FY2023. 
Lancaster’s general fund revenue sources are comprised primarily of the property tax levy at 83%, 
local receipts at 8%, state aid at 5%, and other miscellaneous receipts at 4%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In FY2023 Lancaster had $1.2M in certified free cash and $1.9M in its general stabilization fund, for a 
combined $3.1M in reserves, equivalent to 11.6% of its FY2023 general fund budget. Lancaster has 
maintained a strong reserves position for the past decade, with combined free cash and stabilization 
fund amounts never dipping below 11.56% of revenue. This is a significant improvement, with the 
1999 FMR noting that Lancaster had a negative average free cash amount from FY1990 – FY1999. 
However, while the town’s reserve position is strong, free cash certifications have been in decline 
from a high point of 10.3% of budget in FY2019, down to 4.5% in FY2023. The town has often 

FY2023 Revenue Allocation 



3 
 

appropriated free cash to fund non-recurring items in the operating budget, a practice we 
recommend against. However, the FY2023 budget included the use of free cash only for non-recurring 
capital items, a practice we encourage the town to continue in future fiscal years. The town’s 
stabilization fund balance has fluctuated less, remaining between 7-8% of the general fund budget in 
the same time period. Lancaster has also maintained a capital stabilization fund since FY2017 with an 
FY2023 balance of $279,377. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Structural Overview 
 
Lancaster operates with a three-member select board and an open town meeting form of 
government. A 2002 special act (“An Act Establishing a Department of Finance and Budget in the 
Town of Lancaster”) created the position of finance director/town accountant who reports to the 
select board and supervises the accounting, treasurer/collector, and assessing offices. There is a five-

Combined Reserves as Percentage of General Fund Budget 

Fiscal 
Year

General 
Fund Budget Free Cash Free Cash as 

% of Budget

Stabilization 
Fund 

Balance

Stabilization 
Fund as % of 

Budget

Combined 
Reserves

Combined as 
% budget

2013 $17,487,523 $739,486 4.23% $1,447,148 8.28% $2,186,634 12.50%
2014 $17,954,054 $578,798 3.22% $1,499,761 8.35% $2,078,559 11.58%
2015 $19,438,882 $1,189,146 6.12% $1,308,979 6.73% $2,498,125 12.85%
2016 $20,068,290 $1,120,283 5.58% $1,447,939 7.22% $2,568,222 12.80%
2017 $20,823,600 $1,780,676 8.55% $1,240,572 5.96% $3,021,248 14.51%
2018 $22,157,838 $1,660,870 7.50% $1,764,778 7.96% $3,425,648 15.46%
2019 $22,649,547 $2,339,523 10.33% $1,781,770 7.87% $4,121,293 18.20%
2020 $25,902,617 $1,870,524 7.22% $1,805,280 6.97% $3,675,804 14.19%
2021 $24,251,917 $1,886,477 7.78% $1,834,620 7.56% $3,721,097 15.34%
2022 $25,706,416 $1,846,533 7.18% $1,862,234 7.24% $3,708,767 14.43%
2023 $26,686,964 $1,199,455 4.49% $1,884,255 7.06% $3,083,710 11.56%



4 
 

member, elected finance committee tasked with reviewing the budget and developing 
recommendations for town meeting, though the committee has served in a budget preparation role 
in the past. An elected Board of Public Works oversees the public works departments (highway and 
cemetery) and water enterprise fund, while the Lancaster Sewer District provides sewer service 
independent from town administration.  
 
The roles of the select board and town administrator were laid out in a policies and procedures 
document adopted by the select board in July 2018 and codified under Chapter 304 Section 8 of town 
bylaws. These bylaws establish the select board as Lancaster’s primary policymaking body, explicitly 
stating that the board will refrain from engaging in day-to-day supervisory activity over town 
departments. This role is instead delegated to the town administrator as chief operating officer and 
finance director/town accountant with regard to financial management. This is in line with FMRB best 
practice, as a professional town administrator is in a better position to administer daily operations 
and implement the broad policy directives of the board, as well as representing a single point of 
accountability for town staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FTE Count: Financial Offices 

Finance/ Budget/Accounting Treasurer/Collector Assessing Total 
2.5 4 2 8.5 

 
The town’s administrative and financial management offices are relatively lean, like many small 
towns. A full-time executive assistant in the select board office manages clerical duties, various day-
to-day tasks, and assists the board and town administrator in coordinating with other parties. The 
finance director also serves as the town accountant, and in that capacity supervises a full-time 
assistant town accountant. The FY2024 proposed budget includes funding for a part-time budget 

Select Board

Director of Finance & Budget/Town Accountant Treasurer/Collector Principal Assessor

Town Administrator

Assistant Town Accountant (FT)

Budget Analyst (PT)
Proposed in FY24 Budget

Asst. Treasurer/Collector
(FT)

Payroll Clerk (FT) Department Asst. 
(PT)

Department Asst. 
(PT)

Assistant Assessor (PT)



5 
 

analyst to assist with budget preparation. Staffing in the treasurer/collector’s office is comprised of 
the treasurer/collector, a full-time assistant treasurer/collector, a full-time payroll clerk, and two 
part-time department assistants. The assessing office consists of a full-time principal assessor and 
assistant assessor.  
 
As previously mentioned, there has been tension around budget preparation responsibilities, 
underscoring the lack of codified roles and processes in town bylaws. Language in town bylaws and 
the 2002 special act identify broad authorities such as the finance director’s duty to coordinate 
financial information and the finance committee’s right to access budget materials.  However, there 
is no codification of a detailed budget process, assignment of specific tasks and responsibilities, or 
milestones denoting phases of the budget process within the fiscal calendar. This absence of 
specificity continues to fuel conflict around budgetary control and responsibility between different 
town entities.  
 
Despite the ambiguity of the bylaws, the town administrator took the initiative to start implementing 
a formal budget process this past budget cycle, culminating in a comprehensive budget document for 
FY2024. The document aligns with many DLS best practices regarding the budget process, including 
a budget message, breakdown of revenues and expenditures, town administrator recommendations, 
and departmental goals, objectives and narratives.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



6 
 

RECOMMENDATION STATUS SUMMARY 
 
We are pleased to report that of the nineteen recommendations in Lancaster’s 1999 Financial 
Management Review the town has completed fourteen, partially completed two, and is in the process 
of completing two, representing action taken on 95% of the issues raised with one recommendation 
(5%) waiting to be addressed. With a capable town administrator supported by the select board and 
leading a newly energized team of financial officers, we are confident in the town’s ability to address 
its challenges. Please see the charts below for a general summary of implementation status. The 
following pages include a detailed discussion of each recommendation, the town’s status in its 
implementation, and recommendations for next steps or enhancements (if applicable). Following the 
discussion of prior recommendations, we offer several new recommendations intended to build on 
the original report. 
 
   

1

2

2

14

Not Complete

In Progress

Partially Complete

Complete



7 

PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

1 Coordinating Financial 
Management 

Partially 
Complete 

This recommendation addressed the need for more clearly 
defined lines of authority and responsibility with regard to the 
budget process.  
 
The new town administrator has taken a lead role in budget 
preparation and has been working to formalize the process with 
departments. She holds staff meetings weekly and discusses 
budgets one-on-one with department heads to refine their 
budget submission and align it with town needs. This is comprised 
of an initial submission where she provides feedback, resulting in 
a revised budget submission. The final budget document includes 
columns for initial departmental requests and the town 
administrator recommendation. 
 
Ultimately, a budget bylaw or a town charter definitively laying 
out budget roles, responsibilities, and authority will ensure 
accountability in the budget process and town operations.  
 
 

Ultimately the town should adopt a budget process with 
the following components: 

• Broad town-wide goals developed by the select 
board and administrator and translated to both 
general and departmental level spending 
targets. 

• A financial forecast (see the Forecasting policy in 
the FMRB policy manual) developed by the town 
administrator and the accountant. 

• Formal budget submissions: department heads 
should submit budget requests to the town 
administrator, who will review them against 
budget parameters and make changes. 

• Joint meetings of the select board and finance 
committee to discuss the forecast, departmental 
budgets, resolve budget questions, and build 
consensus among stakeholders prior to town 
meeting. 

• A parallel capital planning process that includes 
standardized submissions to the town 
administrator with specific review criteria to 
determine which projects become part of that 
year’s capital budget.  

• A process for monitoring year-to-date 
expenditures to ensure they are in line with 
appropriations and revenue collections  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

2 
Hold Joint Meetings with 
Select Board and Finance 
Committee 

Complete 

In October 2022 the select board and finance committee met jointly 
in the form of a “budget summit” to discuss the budget 
development process and build consensus around the community’s 
fiscal condition, spending goals, and available revenue. This was 
followed up with a joint meeting in December on capital planning 
and another summit to finalize the operating budget in February 
2023. 

We recommend building off the progress established 
this budget cycle and making joint board meeting 
“summits” a permanent addition to the budget process. 
Future summits should be integrated with the various 
milestones of the budget process, including the 
completion of the initial operating budget based on 
departmental submissions, revenue projections, and 
potential changes in the budget due to revised revenue 
projections later in the fiscal year.  
 

3 
 
 

Establish Financial 
Reserves Policy 

In 
Progress 

The town does not have a formally adopted reserves policy, but the 
finance director and town administrator have begun discussions on 
drafting one. With regard to the Finance Committee Reserve Fund, 
the town is developing a request form as well as a standardized 
procedure that we recommend be integrated into the reserves 
policy. 

We encourage the town to adopt a formal financial 
reserves policy as a part of a comprehensive financial 
policies manual. The reserve policy should identify the 
town’s financial reserves (such as free cash, 
stabilization fund, other/specialized stabilization funds) 
and designate appropriate use cases for each reserve. It 
should also include a target balance for each fund, 
expressed as a percentage of the annual budget. 
Examples of a financial policies manual can be found on 
the DLS website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 

# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

4 

Establish Capital Planning 
Committee, Create Annual 
Capital Budget and 
Revenue and Expenditure 
Forecast 

In 
Progress 

The original recommendation attempted to address the need for a 
clear and defined capital planning process. To accomplish this, the 
town administrator has created a capital asset inventory to form the 
basis of capital planning for the town. She has also developed a 
capital outlay submission form for departments to complete when 
requesting capital items and has integrated it into the capital 
planning process alongside the operating budget process. In 
addition, departments also complete an inventory form to send 
back to the town administrator, who uses it to update the asset 
inventory. 
 
The town has not established a capital planning committee. 
However, with the town administrator taking the lead, a capital 
planning committee may not be necessary to administer the 
process. Instead, such a committee may benefit the town as an 
advisory body evaluating and ranking project submissions in a 
report.  
 
The finance director has been annually updating a five-year forecast 
using DLS’ forecast template since 2015. She sends the forecast to 
the town administrator, select board, and finance committee. Since 
FY2017 the town has maintained a capital stabilization fund, which 
can serve as a dedicated source of capital project funding.  

We recommend that the town administrator, along 
with the select board and finance committee, continue 
to refine the capital planning process.  
 
An effective capital budgeting process should include 
the following components: 

• Clear definition of capital project with dollar 
and useful life threshold. 

• Capital asset inventory. 
• Formal submission process for departmental 

projects with standardized submission 
documents that parallels the operating 
budget process. 

• Submission review process with standardized 
criteria and a scoring system. 

• Five-year capital plan with a basis in town’s 
financial forecast. 

• Clear method for capital funding.  
 
Regarding the forecast, we recommend integrating it 
more fully into the annual budget process by making it 
the subject of one more budget summits, both for 
presenting the initial forecast and an updated version. 
 
Additionally, the town should include prospective uses 
of the Community Preservation Fund (as well as the 
Community Preservation Committee) in the annual 
capital process, educating department heads with 
regard to allowable uses and coordinating with town’s 
community preservation committee. 

5 Streamline Posting of 
Financial Information Complete 

The treasurer/collector posts receipts to VADAR, the town’s 
financial software, daily. Payments are batched together and 
posted at the end of the day. There is a terminal at the counter for 
payment and residents can also pay online via InvoiceCloud or a 
drop box at the front of the building (one for town receipts and the 
other for the sewer district). The town has a lockbox service with 
Eastern Bank, which they post to town accounts after confirming 
availability of funds, and a check scanner for deposits.  

 

 
 



10 

# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

6 
Resolve Data 
Incongruencies with Water 
Collection System 

Complete 

The original recommendation addressed a problem where the 
water department and the treasurer/collector were using different 
versions of accounting and billing software, leading to the need for 
the treasurer/collector to carry a diskette to the water department 
to update payment information in person.  
 
The treasurer/collector is also a town collector and collects and 
maintains receivable controls for all town receipts, including water. 
This is done at the counter, through the drop box, or online using 
InvoiceCloud and is ultimately accounted for in VADAR. Since 
VADAR is entirely could-based, and since the treasurer/collector 
collects the receipts, the opportunity for the data incongruencies 
noted above does not exist.  

 

7 Be Ready for Y2K 
Transition Complete 

The original report was completed in 1999, so this recommendation 
was intended to ensure that the town entered the new millennium 
without disruption to its operations. Following the report, town 
administration took the necessary steps to ensure that municipal 
computer systems converted to the new year without issue. 

 

8 Automate Sewer 
Collection System 

Not 
Complete 

The sewer district operates independently from the town, with a 
written agreement governing their relationship. Town officials have 
no say in how the district conducts business.  

 

9 
Establish Regular Office 
Hours for Town 
Accountant 

Complete 

The finance director/town accountant established in the 2002 
special act has been a full-time member of the financial 
management team since 2006. Department heads report good 
teamwork, and the finance director meets regularly (often daily) 
with other financial officers to discuss any issues and stay on top of 
collective tasks. 

 

10 Monthly Revenue Reports 
by Town Accountant Complete 

The finance director/town accountant reports that she has been 
producing monthly YTD revenue/expenditure reports for at least 
the past decade. Reports are sent to departments and to the town 
administrator and include a form that departments must sign 
acknowledging the stated balance and report any variances or 
potential overruns/shortfalls.  

 

 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

11 

Reconciliation 
Procedures for Town 
Accountant and 
Treasurer/Collector 

Complete 

The finance director/town accountant and the treasurer/collector 
have a standing practice of meeting at least monthly to reconcile 
their books. The treasurer/collector keeps monthly control books for 
all receipts in Excel, which she ties to the VADAR control accounts, 
making an annotation that they are balanced. The accountant then 
runs a receivable report for the month and compares it to the 
treasurer/collector reports and the two research any variances, 
which are often resolved quickly due to the level of line-item details. 
With regard to cash reconciliation, the treasurer/collector keeps a 
cashbook in Excel. She exports cash accounts from VADAR into Excel 
and then compares them to her cashbook and combines them into 
one spreadsheet. They are in process of developing a written version 
of this procedure. 

As part of a financial policies manual, adopt a 
reconciliations policy that designates specific 
frequencies for reconciling all applicable receipts and 
laying out the necessary procedures, parties, and 
documents. 

12 
Water Department 
Should Use Town 
Accountant 

Complete 

At the time of the FMR the water department had engaged the 
services of a third-party accounting firm for their bookkeeping. This 
resulted in instances where the consultant determined a surplus 
where there had in fact been a deficit. Since then, the water 
department no longer contracts with an outside accounting firm 
and relies on the finance director/town accountant. 

 

13 
Ensure Regular 
Inspections of All Sales 
Properties 

Complete 

Presently, the assessing department hires out data collection, sales 
analysis, cost tables and abatement work to RRG. However, the 
principal assessor will soon take on the bulk of the data collection 
work, opting for third-party help during revaluation years. The 
principal assessor currently performs building and permit 
inspections, sometimes bringing her assistant.  

 

14 Create a Sales Survey for 
New Owners Complete 

The assessing department has developed a detailed sales survey that 
the principal assessor sends to each new owner. The survey includes 
questions on any special terms, the type of sale, type of property, 
HOA/condo fees, second home status, transfer of included personal 
property, various interior details including heating type and rooms, 
and accessory structures. Residents have the option to return the 
survey via mail or to scan and email their reply to the assessing 
department. 

Consider making the sales survey available on the 
assessors’ website, either via a downloadable PDF or 
interactive form. This may help increase response rate 
by reducing the effort needed for a resident to 
respond. 

15 
Board of Assessor 
Should Receive 
Computer Training 

Complete 

At the time of the FMR, the board of assessors had a greater role in 
the day-to-day functioning of the assessing department, leading to 
the recommendation that they be trained in the CAMA system. 
However, now the department is run by a professional principal 
assessor and an assistant, who are both trained and able to use the 
present CAMA system by Tyler, iasWorld. 

 



12 

 

 
  

# Recommendation Status Comments Suggested Enhancements/Next Steps 

16 
Create a Part-time 
Assistant Assessor 
Position 

Complete 
The current structure of the assessing department (full-time principal assessor 
and assistant) fulfills this recommendation. 

 

17 

Encourage Taxpayer 
Use of Lockbox 
Service and Expand 
to Water/Sewer 

Complete 

There is a secure drop box slot available in the front of town hall for all town 
receipts, including water. Next to it, there is a separate slot for sewer bills. 
Information on how to pay (online, by mail, and via the lockbox) is also included 
on the treasurer/collector’s website.  

 

18 

Turn Over All Cash 
and Payments to 
Treasurer Upon 
Receipt 

Complete 

According to Lancaster’s receipts policy (approved by the select board in 2019), 
receipts of less than $500 must be turned over to the treasurer/collector within 
two business days, and receipts over $500 must be turned over daily. The 
receipts policy has thirteen detailed steps on how departments must handle 
receipts, including a turnover process that involves separate, color-coded copies 
of the turnover sheet for the accountant, treasurer/collector, and department. 

 

19 
Reconcile Monthly 
With Accountant and 
Water/Sewer Staff 

Partially 
Complete 

The treasurer collects water receipts, so this is part of the monthly reconciliation 
with the accountant. However, the town has no access to sewer district books 
and will likely need a revision of the agreement between the town and the 
district for regular reconciliations to take place. 

 



13 
 

NEW RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Consider Key Structural Changes Through the Government Study Committee 
 
Lancaster’s town meeting authorized a government study committee in May 2022, citing the 
changing scope over government operations and the increased complexity of challenges facing local 
officials. The committee’s stated mission is to perform a comprehensive review of Lancaster’s form 
of government, structure, and operational methods and make recommendations for the town to 
better meet modern challenges. We recommend that the committee evaluate the following changes: 
 
Comprehensive Bylaw Review/Town Charter 
 
Either through the committee as a whole or a subcommittee, review the town’s bylaws for 
recommendations to keep, amend, or delete (such as bylaws that are outdated, no longer applicable, 
or contradictory), or propose new bylaws for adoption. One point of focus should be ensuring that 
the bylaws outline responsibilities regarding budget preparation and clearly define the roles of the 
select board, town administrator, finance director, and finance committee. 
 
In its review, the committee may recommend codifying the budget process through a town charter 
rather than town bylaws. An effective charter will document the town’s structure, list all appointed 
and elected positions, boards, committees, and clearly define duties, responsibilities, and lines of 
accountability, while granting town officers the authority they need to fulfill their stated roles.  
 
Increase Select Board Membership to Five 
 
We recommend considering an increase of select board membership from three to five members. 
Two more members may allow discussion and deliberations to continue past where a three-member 
board could find itself deadlocked. Additionally, this would aid in the formation of subcommittees 
and liaising with other boards and committees, expanding communication with a reduced risk to open 
meeting law violations.  
 
Eliminate the Board of Public Works 
 
Having the DPW report to a separate, elected board siloes the department from town administration 
and decentralizes lines of communication and management. Integrating the department into town 
operations under the direction of the town administrator will foster stronger collaboration between 



14 
 

department officials and the select board and town administration. Residents will also benefit from 
streamlined communication and processes between DPW and other town departments. 
 
Convert To an Appointed Finance Committee 
 
In many towns, the finance committee is appointed by the town moderator, or by another town body 
such as a select board. Selecting committee members by appointment can ensure enough members 
to consistently maintain a quorum and avoid long periods of vacancy between elections, especially in 
cases where local civic engagement is lower than ideal. Having members subject to appointment 
rather than popular vote can also support stronger financial expertise on the committee. 
 
Revisit the Agreement with the Lancaster Sewer District 
 
We recommend the select board approach the Lancaster Sewer District to consider revising the 
agreement between the town and district. At present, there is little to no cooperation other than the 
placing of a drop box for sewer bills in town hall. The finance director reports that the district’s books 
are not open to her and the opportunity for the town to assist in accounting, reconciliation, or provide 
material support through collaboration is extremely limited. Discussions of a new agreement should 
center on an efficient billing and payment system that is easily understood and navigated by the 
ratepayer.  
 
Plan for Succession in Finance Departments 
 
We recommend that Lancaster plan for the eventual succession of its financial department heads. 
Under the direction of the town administrator, current department heads should review how 
personnel complete core tasks and how well these align with job descriptions. With this information, 
departments can take the following key steps: 
 

• Develop procedure manuals with step-by-step instructions, prioritizing the most critical 
tasks. The town should reach out to vendors for training and support materials if use of 
proprietary software (such as VADAR) is key to fulfilling an employee’s job duties. 
 

• Confer with peer communities regarding departmental operating structure and their 
experience hiring and retaining qualified candidates.  
 

• Research the viability of regional agreements or outsourcing for certain services, as 
appropriate. 

  



15 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 

In preparing this Review, DLS spoke with the following individuals: 
 

Name Position 

Stephen J. Kerrigan Select Board Chair 

Richard S. Trussell Finance Committee Chair 

Kate Hodges Town Administrator 

Cheryl Gariepy Finance Director/Town Accountant 

Mary Frost Treasurer/Collector 

Bobbi-Jo Williams Principal Assessor 

 



 

New Hours 
Town Offices  

 MONDAY - THURSDAY 

FRIDAY 

CLOSED WEEKENDS 

8:30 – 4:30 

8:30 – 12:00 



ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET AND POLICY



PARID: 147030000000128B MUNICIPALITY: LANCASTER LUC: 017
KALON FARMS INC 547 NECK RD PARCEL YEAR: 202

      

MassGIS

+
−

0 100 200ft

Record Navigator

1 of 1  

Actions

 Buffer Search

Reports
 

CSV Export
Mailing List
Res PRC
COM PRC

Go

javascript:Buffer()






























































ONT

V
(J
z
4 C

1653

MEMO

TO: La ncaster Select Board

FROM: Kate Hodges, Town Administrator

DATE: November 17, 2022

RE: Updated Fees for Services

Many of the legal matters which come before the town require action and notifications by

statute. These include but are not limited to, abutter notifications, legal ads, and licensing

needs. It has been at least eight (8) years since the fees charged for many of these services has

been studied. Currently, many of these services we perform in relation to the action above are

at a rate much lower than what the actual cost is. Considering that, the following proposed

amendments to the Town’s fee schedules are proposed.

Action Current Fee Proposed

_______________

Adjusted_Fee
SELECT BOARD

Special 1-day Liquor License — Beer & Wine $50.00 $100.00
Special 1-day Liquor License —AllAlcohol $75.00 $100.00

Certified Mailings $7.82 (abutter) + $8.25 (abutter) +

$49.92 $55.00
PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PublicHearing Notices $50.00 $100.00 -
$135001

ZBA Certified Mailings $7.82 (abutter) + $8.25 (abutter) +

$49.92 $55.00
Zoning Determination Letter $0.00 $75.00

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Copies—B& W Varies $0.20/page
Copies-Color Varies $0.40/page

Large-Scale Printing (greater than 8.5x11) N/A $1.00/page
Public Records Requests $25.00/hour $25.00/hour2

‘Prices depend on the length of the ad and number. Minimum of$100 paid at time of application,

additional amount billed when ad copy and charges are provided to CDP Department staff.

2 Records requests shall continue to be handled on an individual basis consistent with Massachusetts

Public Records Law. As a community with a population less than 20,000, Lancaster may charge up to

$25/hr. for time spent searching for, combining, segregating, redacting, or reproducing requested

records. Determinations relative to how and when fees may apply are the discretion of the Town’s

Records Access Officers (RAO) and, where applicable or necessary, the Town Administrator/Select Board.

Redactions for records which incur Town Counsel expenses will incur a fee unless waived by the Select

Board in advance.

Updated Fee Schedule — Nov. 2022
Page 1

II

Adopted by Select Board: //2022



T
O

W
N

O
F

L
A

N
C

A
S

T
E

R
,

M
A

S
S

A
C

H
U

S
E

T
T

S
R

evised
through

L
IC

E
N

S
E

S
IS

S
U

E
D

B
Y

T
H

E
S

E
L

E
C

T
B

O
A

R
D

2019
F

E
E

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

L
IC

E
N

S
E

O
R

P
E

R
M

IT
T

Y
P

E
L

IC
E

N
S

E
or

P
E

R
M

IT
F

E
E

S
T

A
T

U
T

O
R

Y
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

A
lcohol

B
everage

—
A

ll
A

lcoholic
—

R
estaurant

$2,500.00
G

.L
.

c.138,
§12

A
lcoholic

B
everage

—
B

eer
&

W
ine

—
R

estaurant
$2,000.00

G
.L

.
c.138,

§12
A

uctioneers
P

erm
it

(A
nnual)

$100.00
G

.L
.

c.100,
§10

A
uctioneers

P
erm

it
(S

pecial)
$25.00

G
.L

.
c.100,

§10
A

utom
atic

A
m

usem
ent

D
evice

$100.00
per

device
G

.L
.

c.140,
§177A

A
utom

obile
D

ealer
—

C
lass

I(N
ew

)
$200.00

C
L

.
c.140,

§59
A

utom
obile

D
ealer

—
C

lass
II

(U
sed)

$200.00
G

.L
.

c.140,
§59

A
utom

obile
—

C
lass

III
—

Junk
$200.00

G
.L

.
c.140,

§59
B

illiards,
Pool,

B
ow

ling
A

lleys
$100.00

G
.L

.c1
4
0
,

§177,
G

.L
.

c.140,
§202

B
oarding

H
ouse

$100.00
G

.L
.c1

4
0
,

§23
C

lubs,
A

ssociations
—

D
ispensing

F
ood

&
B

everages
to

M
em

bers
$50.00

G
.L

.c1
4
0
,

§21E
C

arriers
of

P
assen

g
ers

by
M

otor
V

ehicle
(B

us,
V

an,
T

rolley)
$100.00

G
.L

.c1
5

9
A

,
§1

C
offee,

T
ea

H
ouse

$100.00
G

.L
.c1

4
0
,

§47
C

om
m

on
V

ictualler
$100.00

G
.L

.c1
4
0
,

§2
D

orm
itory

Facility
(E

ducational)
$100.00

G
.L

.ci4
O

,
§23

E
ntertainm

entfor
Fee—

Sunday
(A

nnual)
$400.00

G
._.

c.136,
§4

E
ntertainm

ent
for

Fee—
Sunday

(P
er

E
vent)

$25.00
G

.L
.

c.136,
§4

E
ntertainm

ent
provided

by
C

lub,
C

om
m

on
V

ictualler,
Innholder

$100.00
G

.L
.

c.140,
§183A

F
ood

V
ehicles,

L
unch

C
arts

$100.00
G

.L
.

c.140,
§

4
9

,5
0

F
ortuneT

eller
$50.00

G
.L

.
c.140,

§1851
F

raternity
or

Sorority
H

ouse
$100.00

G
L

c.1
4

0
,

§23
H

aw
ker,

P
eddler,

T
ransientV

endor
$100.00

G
.L

.c1
0

1
,

§
5
,1

7
,2

2
Ice

or
R

oller
S

kating
R

ink
—

M
onday-S

aturday
$400.00

G
.L

.c1
4
0
,

§186
Ice

or
R

oller
S

kating
R

ink
—

S
unday

$400.00
Individually!

G
._.

c.136,
§4

$100.00
w

ith
M

on-S
at

L
icense

Innholder
$125.00

G
.L

.
c.140,

§2
M

ovie
T

heater
&

D
rive

In
T

heater
$500.00

G
.L

.
c.140,

§181
M

oving
B

uildings
in

P
ublic

W
ay

$25.00
G

.L
.

c.85,
§18

O
ne

D
ay

S
pecial

P
erm

it
—

A
ll

A
lcohol

(M
ust

be
a

501c)
$50.00

O
ne

D
ay

S
pecial

P
erm

it
-

B
eer

&
W

ine
$75.00

S
econdhand

D
ealer

(Junk)
$200.00

G
.L

.
c.140,

§54,
G

.L
.

c.140,
§202

S
ingle

E
vent

(F
or

L
icenses

not
otherw

ise
established)

$25.00
G

L.
c.40,

§22F
T

heatrical
E

vents,
Public

E
xhibitions/S

how
s

—
M

onday
to

S
aturday

$100.00
G

.L
.

c.140,
§181

T
heatrical

E
vents,

Public
E

xhibitions/S
how

s
—

S
unday

$100.00
G

.L
.

c.136,
§4

N
O

T
E

:
L

icense
F

ees
adopted

pursuant
to

authority
granted

under
the

provisions
of

M
.G

.L
.

C
hapter

40,
§22F

.

R
evised

2019



APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS



Kathi Rocco

From: Steve Kerrigan <stevekerrigan@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, September 1 8, 2023 9:04 AM
To: Amanda Cannon
Cc: Kathi Rocco; Kate Hodges
Subject: Re: [Lancaster MA] Resignation from Board of Health (Sent by Denise Hurley,

deehurley@hotmail.com)

That’s too bad.

On Sep 18, 2023, at 9:03 AM, Amanda Cannon <ACannonlancasterma.gov> wrote:

Please see the below resignation letter from Denise Hurley re: Board of Health.

It is on file in the clerk’s office.

Thank you,
Mandy

From: Contact form at Lancaster MA <cmsmailer@civicplus.com>
Sent: Saturday, September 16, 2023 2:05 PM
To: Amanda Cannon <ACannon@lancasterma.gov>
Subject: [Lancaster MA] Resignation from Board of Health (Sent by Denise Hurley,
deehurley@hotmail.com)

Hello acannon,

Denise Hurley (deehurley@hotmail.com) has sent you a message via your contact form
(https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/user/5611/contact) at Lancaster MA.

If you don’t want to receive such e-mails, you can change your settings at
https://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/user/5611/edit.

Message:

Hi Mandy,

I am sending this email to confirm my resignation from the Board of Health... Do I need to send a note to
Kate as well?

Take care,

Denise

1



LICENSES AND PERMITS



RECE1V

SEP fl?3

Board of Selectmen

August 24, 2023

Kathleen Rocco
Prescott Building
701 Main Street — Second Floor
Lancaster, MA 01523

Hello Kathleen,

Enclosed please find three checks in the amount of $5 for the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, $100 for the weekly permit fees, and $30 for the Sunday license. If you have
any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

Thank you,

Eugene Dean

Making Memories

P.O. Box 460 • 32 Stard Road, Seabrook, NH 03874 877-FIESTA1 phone 6034745495 fix www.fiestashows.com



The Aciltur, Fair, inc.

August 14, 2023

‘V’t AnpuaiHolldayDrive4hru at the Lancasterfairarounds

fri conjunc1n with Fiesta Shows. the lanca5ter Fairgrounds will host the 4’ annual Lancaster
Holiday Light Show This dnvethru Holtday Light Show wilt feature over I millIon hohday lights
and decorations thru a I mkIe path on the fairgrounds Guests will er’ioy the experience from
the comfort of Itieir own vehicle, while a designated FM radio stabon transmis hc1day music
throughout the pathway

Operating Dates: November 24’ thru December 31g.
Opçrating Hours Surday—Thursday Spm-lOpm

Friday -$unday and Kh1ays. Sprn-i 1pm

The improved traffic flow wàréd viy weU last year andthere w1 be flOChaflgS AD of this
information will beon the website.

1 Wew1I be entering thru Gate I and exthng thru Gate 2 This allows for a two4ane
entrance at Gate I with twice as many cars ab’e to enter the queue at any given
time.

2 On —line tcket sales will be purchased n me siats which allow the number of cars
entering the fairgrounds to be controlled There will be a fixed number of tickets soki
for any given time slotduring theevening. Theie may be a limited number of tickets
available at the door if riot sold out

3 A dnve-thru food booth li serve hat chocolate bottled water fried dough and cotton
candy.

It is our ga to pmvde a safe and entertainEng evening again thks year

PFeae let us know if you have any questkons

Best Regards;

Rose Darden Boiton Fair Inc àêU 50B2948516

EJ Dean Fiesta Sl’ws ll 6)3-474-5424 0

J’OB,u I54’Bian. MA W74i3•tfft G72U’x (97R)fi52I2U



__

I •tJctte

TOWN OF LANCASTER, MAS5ACHUSE1TS [ nc hit -

BOARDOFSLECTMEN

Town Hall, 701 MaIn Street, Suite i

Lancaster, MA 01513
r2? rtrWij

Tel; 9783653326 Fax; 978-3688486
Ettir:

APPLICATION FOR TOWN LICENSE
DANCING, SPORTS GAMES FAIRS EXPOSITiONS., PLAYS OR

ENTERTAiNMENT OF PUBLIC DIVERSION** ON SUNDAY

New Application X Renewal

N3me of Concern’ Dean and Ftynr. lcic. (fbi Festahows)

Sheet Addre6 of Cori;;em32 Stard Road Seabrock, NH 03S74

MaAting Adds (if differenl)PG Box 460 Seabrook. NH 03874

Contt PrsQn a. m i’OWti Dii;tat; Minge 0the4: eugene Dn , Owner

Teephona 603-4744424 FacsimIe: _6G3-474S4S EMai1. edearims?i corn

Descnbe in detail l:heppoteddancing, game. sport, lair. expos4tion. play. or entertarnment of pubtsc drvrsicr,-.

Fiesta Shows n partnhp wffl, ThBcftcn Fairbc wouidhke IQ hostthe 4th anraaI Lanca.jçcfay bght Show

fv-thni atThe LacFargáund See attad sheet tr adddoiai rnfomaton and tWLAt.

Høur of Propøed Enteainrnent: Staitng flme: 5 Ending Time / O PM

NOTiCE: No License uued pursuanttoG.L. c136,44.hat1be grantedto p.rniitactiv4tiesb€far 1:00 pm, withoit a ijçenie tsued
by the CommfaIoner of Pubflc Sfoty Attn: SpocT LcancAii OM*on On Ashbutlon Place, Soton, MA O2tOI-151I

The applicait certifies that aWslate tx rotutns have been Med irid all state and IocI tces have been paid as requfr.d
by law and further agrees to carnpy with the tonus of the Ucee and ;pphcabie Law, and all rules nd regutatlone
promuIgitd theieto. The Applicant furthor c.rttfles that the information contaired In thi* applicton Is true and
accurate arid also authonze th Ucensing Authority or it agents to conduct whatever Lnvesbgabon ncce*ary to
verify 1,e ia(ormat3on contined In this appUcabon

j’ 4:_i —-.-- / J
Stgn:tur&f Applicant ‘ _ I

Tax flJ Requwed_C2O4O5446____________

Licenie Fee must be subrrntted with thka form Make checic pybIe to Town of Lncaster MI1 ApphcatIoc Form
Workers Compensation Affidavit, and check to Board of S.Ioctmon 701 Main Street Suite , 1.aii’casr MA 01523

. Dancing ips to watching dance (eg BaUet.
Public Dkerslon kicIu1e. but i not Iimitdto, flea mat*etc, coInoperatod amus,mtit, ice and tirckatInq caruseIs ImIlned

tItway F.iris whI and axhibi1ion of tfrefihtIng.

NOTICE: The hng ofmappkaku confccsto qso the aotthNpntto uneitk ny actzvtts tn%Ithelrhas bn
Th siareot licer 1!3ut:1e1 to ¶1eApkntCdllTpttanc withal o1e op1iabL€ Slate o’ Ioca
;‘:aute otnriL t)yf4s rueSOtB9UtbO The ersPerthtto requ€tnyadditoi rorrnahor
de€gi’ apitpate fr.r grpe ofa mtntng the Iems and CO ft,Oc1 ftha Ucetise arui tSt1eCWr 10 La The p’c Iiir o

G L 2may guire the fj gateWersCorp stion InJT31ceAff1dyt ththsapphci Fikre to h!fidvL toog wtt any

rer retwrecJ nftunatior a’i tor cimtiator’ &I be s ffc,an cause or 1e drt& of the Licwe aIcatiw

Siiiy L fM1flO i.r:p;M3ron F-ni Tim2fl1 fL



MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL LAWS ANNOTATED
PART 1. ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

TITLE XX. PUBLIC SAFETY AND GOOD ORDER
CHAPTER 136 OBSERVANCE OF A COMMON DAY OF REST AND LEGAL. HOLIDAYS

SPORTS, GAMES AND ENTERTAINMENT ON SUNDAY
I

Current through Ch. 11 oftheO3 1st Annual SesS.

4 Ucenue; appLication; issuance; e; revocation. etc.; apphcation of sectiofi

(1) The mayor of a city or the seectme of a town upon written appcahon descnbin tna proposed danc;n r
game sport fa* epostron play1 entrtanment r public diversion except a provided in sectvc one huncfrd and five o
chapter oe hundred ard fortynine may grant upon such rea.onab Iew and crnditIo’s as they may prscnbe. a
bcerse o 4oId on Sunday anc;ng or any game sport far expos;ton play, entertaFnmenl or pubiiu dversiw for wtich
c;haige in the form of pjment or coiIdon of money or other valuable cocsdera1on i rraie for ‘he prw1ee cf bLng
preerit thereat or nggg the’erT1 except hvre racng dog cng bo:ng wesUig and hunting with hrarm
proyded however that ro uh IIvense haII be issued for dancrnq for whcti a charge n the fomi of the payment or
cvflection of r”oney or other aIuae ons1decaion ts made for the privdege of eeigagng thrern and povtded further,
howevei thai no license sssued uiwier hs paTagfaph saI1 be gianted to pccrnit suCh actvrt es beor one orclock In the
afternoon and ovded further, that sich applfcation eept an application to conduct an athteIr game or sport shall be
approved by the comn sicne of pubhc safety and shall be accompanied by a fee of Iwo dot1rs or rn the case ol an
appflcat1c for the approval of an annual hcense by a fee o fft doI1er

(2 Lcenses rray be ssued by the authvnttes des grateJ in paragrapP’ ( I to perrntt s.ich achvities befoe one
c, clock n the ifemoon with the wntten approval çf the conimtssiorer of pubIc saftty and upon such rasonabe temis
and conditions a prescnbed by him theiin The application for the apptoa1 of he pioosed activity by the
commtssior’e saII be in wn’g ard shall be accompiwed by a fee of tve 1o1rs or in the case of an apphcaton oc the
aØprovaI ot an ánn cense by a fee of one hüi*fred dollah

(3) The Iicehsinq authonty, or the commf*siorer ólr pufl safely or his desree. may revoke caice orsuapenci
any hcense Issued undar Itu section upon evidence that the terms or conditions df uh 1icens or provsioris of law are
beg v4otateti; provdci. however, t,ai said commissionef snail iiot revoke. cancel or suspend any hcense issuoO under
aràgraph (fl which he s nit rèquird by d pacah to apprcve

(4 The ty coucciI of
2

ity ó’ bcardbf-seIctmen of atöwi may de;errnwie fees!or the Issuance of Icense5. but
fr no event shall iny ich fee be greateçthan tweiMy doflars per cvnI and four h4indred ottar per year

(5) city council o a ci,y and board of se4ectrnen of a town may nake regu1atons relatevelo granting of
iknses under Ih ectLon and may reoka or amend ttem from Hme to time

(6) The provsons of this section haI1 not ppy to premises licensed under me psons of secbon one PuMced
and eighty4hre A of chapter one hundred and [orty provided howevec that paragraph (2) sofa as I regulates
actvtes 01, 5UCh pflfl35 between the hours of two cIok in the niming and or n clock in the afternoon on Sunday1

shall appl to effiLS5 Ikcef3ed under said secEon one hundred and eghty -triree A of a d chapter one hund ed and
forty1

7) Sections two and three and this section shall not apply to qoif, tennis, bowling, kng. or any atvty ma

gymnastum oron any rink Loud or field, farwhch a charge ms made only or the prii1ege of ‘ngagsng therein and not fot

the prT’iIege of beiri present thereat as spectator, nor to ‘he conduct ftir ct’anta1e riurposes of amateur contest5

nvolvng trme thai dnving of automobiles nor to beano games lcned under the provsionsof sechon thirty emghl of

chapter ten

(a) Sectmons 2 ani 3 and ths section shail not apply to an athletic game or contest torwhch a chrg in tha orrn

of the payment of money or ltir valuable corsidecaton Is rn3d ‘or tFe pnvleçe of befng oresnt thereat conducted
presented or ehihited cm Sunday pnor to I o1ctock anternertdian; provided however, ire said ath1etc same or conteat

%jjl .O13



,---‘ _J4 r

TOWN OF LANCASTER, MASSACHIJ SETTS
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Town Hall, 695 Main Strect Suite I
Lancaster. MA 01523

Teh97836S3326 (ext 1201) Fax: 978368-8486
Frnail:k

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE
THEATRICAL EXHIBITIONS. PUBLIC SHOWS. PUBLIC AMUSEMENTS
AND EXHIBITIONS OF EVERY DESCRIPTION HELD ON WEEKDAYS

Nw Application R•newal

Name of Corcern Dean and Ftynri, dibi& Fiesta Shows

Street Address aT Concern.32 Strd foad , Sabook NH 03674

iAa1hn Address (if diffferent):....P 0 Bo 48Q Se.rook NH 03874

CorhtacI Person & Thtè (Dwnei *ct Mge Oueii- Eugene Dean, Owrer

Teeptone 603-4744424 FcsIme . E4Aasr efdean@msncam

Desc:ribeiii delafl Ihe ropased darcing. ganw. spcrt. fair, posrtOn pray. r entLanrnérit of pubUc dvrSon

___

l9esta Shavs lit pãlnership with TheBot1oiFair ncwóuId hke tci hbst the 4 Annual Laiicaster HoIkiay Lht Show

Drne-thru ai The Lencaster Fairgrounds Se attacheil sheet for 3ddIon& informaon and hour& dates

Hours of Prcoosei Entertairrnerrt Startnq Thie P Ending Time : M

The! appant certifies that at state tax returns have been fbd and all state aid local ta*s haie been paid as required
by bw and furttmr agree. to comp’y wtth Urn tonns of the Lkerse and applicable bw and a!I ruea and rguL4l1un
promulgated thereto The Applicant further certitlez that the nformabon conlained rn thts ppTkatkon Is true and
accurate and also authorizes the Ucering Authority or its agents to conduct whatever lnvestigatron is recessary to

v.rif: informatkjn contained in thi* appkation
— 1 I :Ji’

Sgnatt o Appliçar* Date
5SN#órTa ID Réqur& _02Q4Ø5446

Ueet*fi Fee must be submitted with th1 form Make check pyabs to rcwv of Lancaster Mad Apphcatioci Form
Workers Compensation Affidavit, and check to: Board of Selictmei Suite t, 695 Main SrerLancster MA 01521

I DancIfl9 ppUe* to watching dance (eg. R1Iet)
PtbIk Dwu&on includes but Is nolllmftedto flea ma*ets coin op*rt.d amusernnt Ice and roflerskating camvs&s inclined

raI?wayL Ferfls whee1s and exhibitions

o

ffretightiit

A License Led wi4er th;$ 1tzicn applesto S tbpecat Surd. yu Io must fe
‘whth ‘t Bcaid at Selectmei ai PPUCATON FCR UCENSE 10R DAI’CNG PORT3 GAMES TAFS EXPOSITIONS PLAV1S OR
ENTERTANMENTOF PUB!X EJ1VRSIi)N ON SUNLtAY well as n Appica’rfo a SPa.e Ucrse t’e COTiTrt3 or of Puhlw Sary
Attn SpecaILei :Ion. tDe.. Aiitutor Pce Stor MAJ2OB1!B

NOTICE Tr! oftheappar cnfera rpt5. th nriii*h1c an rtr’rtes rantei
Th! &L1iWRf II-Err Jrd4:F ubter ‘Apcatscwi incewtPaP e pIabk Fed Ste r ocaI

ocnai yIvs ruesorreg iLtio-is hi cat
aoproratefor rJrpcfir’ ig’ie err’ anociirio t Lr ri I i. r a L4cer Then r

S L c 152may (equlc6 heftr cit aWo Copiiat IrceAfd’M with ttiaai Fdih1re tt fleMidav. c: i wI ‘
oIir urei ir’r 1-rba c n arctor iIocarentattn ,1Jfl he i -er fih t±e, r I

‘5O1flce

LEP 2023

Weit Fr i Lnmuit Li c.pp1cLn rri’ni Rev tiI 3



M.GLA. 14O181

MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL LAWS ANNOTATED
PART I ADMINISTRATION OF ThE GOVERNMENT

TITLE XX. PUBLIC S$ETY AND GOOD ORDER
CHAPTER 140. LICENSES

THEATRICAL EXHIBmONS, PU9LIC AMUSEMENTS. ETC.

Fr rtlirtrnc!i I. p1ctin Frni. Lev 1P1



Thie CofluNo1flIk fMasuchusetti

bdpahJNøf1aJui’I&AccI4eits

I COagft11 &Je!tf Sde1
Bosio, MA 02114-2017

WofiLrn’ Campciiutioa Iasr*iac *(fiIavi( Ccaierat Riins
SE F1LD WiTh THE PERMITTiNG ALIflJORJTY

I’, ••• _•—

PePrtJcØI

RuiIne&Ozg.ntzatiai Er
.

________

Add3*L ---

N \\ Q Sj i: fO&Lfl

•An qphcuweeb&iI 1L* alieGI biow potify t!t1b2m.

‘-ire Mkbc buttctmrnpai wt* ctxm pday i&iid and ±

-p - -- - -.. —.- — - . -

Ia *fty*ifIKit’ _yeL idôw Is ikeUeyMJrmp.
cComnyNern:fY] SpthE, . ..

1niurW Addr_LP flaz1c S’sJ
Citta2tp cL 1i ,

--

Attacb a capyg1 poilcy d.ckrndo p.. (lhcwIRg tht policy umber d .zpIrdas date)

Fillurs :o secw va*p ii required umd Section 25A oflh4GL c. 152 can Id die Irnáu ofafriind pi]ti c4e

fiTs 119 7 SLS.OO *nd1 uien1, uI civil p.slhci &a c frrm ofa STOP WK ORDER and u fine
ofup to S250.OO a day IB’4t th@ vlo1a. Dc edviidta copy ofthii zt*smd n1y be bwirdcd to the 9Irs. of

ofd DIA r iuricca*r
_.iJ1ULIJIflftflflfl1— —: __.. S11H

_

.—

—-
I .

I — a’4 Nfld1 rhepmts, peim*ici,fpirrteyãattht

__

cv

A aiJi •

Are yau Ia .pb,ir? haek the ajiiprbta bui:
L Q I am e cmptoy’ wiiñ cq,ioyo. (&fIf

or part4m’
I zm have a
cycee wovkkug (or inc n any capwiy.

A’ .. tJLiw
3. Wa ai I xipciitkii id iuofficcr have cxrviicd

thizriiofczunptIoi, peic. 2SZ 1(4)tndwchve
nopbyc. [N work cctp 1MlUflCt iqufrcdj

&fl We a ca-pmfkofpoLtiQa stafd by voIimicra
with cmpløyees CNoworfr conp inwerj

Type (reqafred)
S. QRtifl

6. QRitmurt/BirEariag Eablihment
7. Doc Eidh 21tI (IflCL re*3 esWe, agto cc.)

I. i:
9+ Eutainment

LOD 4umwing

t2Do

T-I -— -- — — ..- —--

——]1rm-—-- —- - -++- -IIt___:-— J’ i+TF

Offlckl uxe fli nt write La this eree 0 b cuEby dy ot ww* affldL

City or Tows: _--
“ PmrmJULkan,.

“JiAutberify (drde one):
T Beard of HeetII* 2+ RiIdhg Department 3. C1tyfIowzi Gcr 4+ Lkeniag Board 5 SeIectEReo’ Omee

. 6Other

_________________

CmitsctPcreo.:______________________________ PNrie1:

_______________________

:r—



-w I 7124ciz3
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER CF INFORMATEON ONLY AND CONFERS NO RtGHTS UPON ThE CERTFF14ATE 14OLDER. TNS

CERT1FCAT DOES NOT AFFRMAiWELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND EXTEND O ALTER ThE COERAQE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW tHIS CERTiFICATE OF N$URANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CON TRACT BETWEEN THE SSUNG INSURER(S), ALJTHORIZtD
REPRESENtATIVE OR PRODUCER AND THE CERflF1CATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT’ it the rtIt1cate holder Is an #DDITIONAL INSURED. ih pôUcyes) must hv* ADDFflONAL INSURED prvishn or b

II SUROGATON S WAIVED, .ubject to the tenns md ctndftion uf the pohcy certain poc1e may rqu1r n ndocemeit. A staernent on
thi csrtificats cIo€s not confer dgtt to tb certificate holder k1ieu of sn.omenUs),

PRUUCF 2ACT
1f&61(e’

- — —

MtGc,wr Mied pei31(y F4WIT FA , -m140 Fauntan Pär)way Ste 570
s Pterburc FL 33716 r!11ed r*M

çcEE i44blC ê

—
— —- Lei7) NIIbW’!i Ifl CCrflflJ

______________ ___

!RtD Fst.:,Qi

Dean and Fn Iñc. OBA Ft Shw .
E

P080x445ô 4%!JERt

Seabrcoi NH 03874 r,

- . 4ttSUflt

COVERAGES CERTJFICAT NLIMOER 14425411 REViSION NUMBER
1H1tT(iCERT1fY THAT THE POULIE5 W $VRAtWE USTED BEIQW HAVE BEEN rSSuEI TO THF N5cIPED NAMED ABOVE FR THE PERC
ND1CAThD .OTh4THSTANDlN ANV REQIJIPEMENT TLM (1J14DQN 04’ MY CCNAC1 OR fiiE COCUMENT V4flI RESPECT TO M1)C}4 TIäS
C€irflF,CATh MAY SE LSSLJED CR MAY FERTAN ThE NS1JJWLE AFFDfDEfl THE PUDJES CESRiED KER2 i LF ET TtJ 4LL 11-fE TEFMS
ExcwsoNs AWDCQNDI1IQNS OF SUCH POUChES $(ji3 m ELN EDUCEt Y PAD QL4MS

__________

—. — SJM4 ticViW ciuci r.w
LTR .

TVOtdUW ptj --yyi—--
--—-, ——— — — --- - .-——--.—

.

A COMMEM. ZRALLiAiTV S262 2122 21 S’2’24 i a—

rLAMc.LpL1E X octrn I ¶O QO

— I I

I I :NüV*i? $1QQ.OX

_g 4RECA1E UMIT A’1JE XET k±4x St t,

:D1i
—---

--—

AiITQUO1LEUA1JtY — —

:_______________
4YLi3O

Zk)N% V ‘
IUt3LY frwmr*i

HvR€t ;no€RY &AwGe
)ijjQ Gi AUT2 LNLv.. xt1 4

I

—,

U;flflA LL
3CttiThCE____ I

€*CES$UA8
CJLM44A1M;I Af;iE:i;Th_________ I

: I F 1
.

i- I

VINE
- —

[J ‘ t * j C4 I

WI LV :-

— —
I . F I2t LJWT I

ci’T1 OF IEN:4ThocAIoIvDcE: 1ACC-I-D 1 Adrt& Riru tsm ‘thfti i rte *‘ IS rqir

1e& Nvemb 1, 2t$ - .brn 5, 2fl4
Tcrr a( antaa. Mk. . .

Bolkn w1 ln

a epec1* to the 1jce cf a name nur

CERTIFICATE HOLDER GANCELLATTON

HGULfl ANY OF TH OVE D€SCRBED POUCIES B CANCLLEO EFRE
THE EP,RAT1CN DATE ThEREGF OflC WI1L BE OEUV€IED IN
ACCORDANCE WImTHE PQIJCY PCVIS1ONS

ottcii Faw. Inc
p ox I 54 i_cpi!W%tavlv
cIonMAO114O

. 1882OI5 ACORD CORPORATION. MI rights retV4
ACORO 25 j2016i03) The ACORD nm and 1j.o rgiterod mirk ot ACORD



I irui.

.rHs CERTLflCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFOfIMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO JIGHT3 UP1N THE CERTIFiCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE t2OE3 NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGAtiVELY AMENO EXT!ND OR ALTER ThE COVERAGE AFfOROED BY ThE POUGIES
BELW THIS CERTIFiCATE OF NSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BE1WEN ThE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUThORZD
R!PF4ESENTATWE OR PRODUCER, AND THECERTtFICATE HOLDEF
IMPOHTANT It tho ck3t9 hoIchirinADD1flONAL INSURED the potJces)musthav ADDITiONAL INSURED prvtan r b eidor
If SUOROGATION S WAIVED bJeii to the terms and condtion ot th iocy cñin pd€cii my require n endorsement stkitmnt on
th cetli1vite does not confer ñht to the cecticate hodr in lieu ot sUch erIdoremMfl

ouctEft - arr
M Goviri A]tted Spea1ty P4O$(E -- — ——

140 rount€jii Pkwy N Sto 7U ‘‘ —

Si P4&sti4ir FL 137IF

t_ri Irs irpm

1JRE .
4F-W4

1êaRKI .

Oean ?nd F’ynn c OBA Fist Shows:
. . — *-________

P0 BOX 460 ‘ —
-- --

Sabrovk NH 03874 !Uflckt .
IlSER: .

------- - - .-- -- - ——
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER. 237O2 REVISION NUMEER.

Ti4!5 $ ro c’ Tf4AY THE OUC1ES, O INSURANCE LI!TE EEJW HAVE EENiSSIJD TO nIL LNSUFflD 4AMEI 4430’dlE FOP HE POLICY PERIOD
1N4AT ANY RE(IJRfMEN TERM Cft C tt1J1ON <>F ANY CONTRACT OR OThER DOCUMENT WH PSPECTTi H Cl Ti S
ERTwcATE M4 BE SSUE OR MAY PEWYAN ThE 1kS(JfANCE F’ZED 3Y 1E * E4ft E4E i SUJFCT Tfl AL Th tE5
EXGU1ONS NO CONDiTIONS OF SUCH POliCiES LiMT HMN W HA’V IEEN REDUCE!3 Y PM GLAIM&

ê4
TYF! 0 tiSiR&’4C ôtiw 1—--- ..‘ .-- - -

--— - ftVirTT!J-1 IMU4TTTiIL..___
A )C ti i ‘ ‘:o iii2i

I
CtMd MAW 1i IXrt I L’ ?1üJ

$

—‘
p!:IONkL % A b c1i * I :Qa ixxi

9!4t MiPtGATE LUrrp’ji Ff3! • HE3AL i4iPEtATh 1 óo

,c rvL_rY
j _ Ar t r7 aC%

i w1w . ,

—--1-

I — — —- — — ——-- ———- —
m*w w( d Jfl Pi v*r 1

—

itI1L’
tCEiLLfi 4;;4j; t44jY Irl I

“RED iQN #EI 1RjPFRTftdWtZL
I

— 4 .d rT4 fl#4 Y r—
ijr

I t [ I
—

1:_

WELAL I —- - t

LC!U LAM £LA-Wit I

EO I 1ENT)OI4j
* voR$$*ccwcp1aATIcN iao1G7i”I1 IiTh.Z!1Z t1124 1vrc: W

AN$PflYERs’uALET y ‘q — - —. I €A

L 4A

:,4
- — - P:LcY11_t

--- I

LL —-

scaiiot OF PEA1TOt9 V tOCA’flO q iP+CtE ACOD i*i scaS11 ip be ikwrd # ‘we 8pbci.j%e’

Da1es Noimber 2O3 . Janr 15. 2024
Thwi O Laa!sr MA
&Itc’ F&r Pri

as ieet.s a 1.ti nii ibhty e41nhi tn 1te qgnce o f’W ;n.uI

cERTIFckTt HOlDER CANCELLATiON

S!4QUtD ANV OF ThE &OVE DESCRSD POLtES BE CANCE1.LO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATT()P4 tYATE ThOF. P4OT WiLL LIELEFIED IN
CCGRDANC WITH fl4 POLICY PROION$

9otan Faji, rnc

—

OF74O —

19884015 COR.O CORPORATION. 11 nqht res€ro

ACORD 25 (201 W0 Tha ACORD nine ind Ic, sire reçist*r9d mac$c% of ACORD



COMMUNICATIONS



NEW BUSINESS



ADJOURNMENT


	Agenda 10.2.23 Amended.pdf
	II. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
	III. SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS -
	VII. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY (Vote may be taken)
	XI. NEW BUSINESS – Unforeseen by the Board
	XII. ADJOURNMENT


	GSC_Survey Fillable Form.pdf
	Lancaster currently utilizes a Town Code which is a compilation of several MA General Laws, Ordinances and Bylaws that are bound together in a large text, by chapter and subject matter, and added to/amended as needed by an ECode service through the State. The Codes are used and consulted when determining Lancaster operations and within what legal parameters or guidelines the Town may, or should, operate. The ECode Book is maintained and amended by an outside firm and is updated as bylaws and MGL's change.
	Some communities choose to have a Municipal Charter as the governing document which establishes the municipality's form of government, elected and administrative officials, and municipal elections and Town boundaries. Charters outline how the government is organized and handles public services. It also outlines the means and models by which the Town handles its financial matters, such as the power to tax and to incur debt or bond. A Charter contains information regarding Town boards, commissions, and committees. While a Charter 'sets the stage' for how Towns operate, specific details and parameters are subsequently outlined by Town policies, bylaws and resolutions which are not part of the charter but are incorporated into the operational and management guides for the Town. These may be amended at Town Meeting or by the Town Regulatory authorities similar to the Codes.
	1. How many years have you lived in Lancaster? _________
	2. What is your current age?
	3. Are you the parent or guardian of a school-age child(ren) living in Lancaster?
	YES  NO
	4. As a parent/guardian of a Lancaster student, which school category best describes your child(ren)'s enrollment?
	5. Do you currently serve, or have you ever served, on an appointed or elected Lancaster Board, Committee or Commission?
	7. Lancaster has an Open Town Meeting form of government. By statute, this requires that participants be present in person in order to cast their votes relative to Town business. Do you believe such limitations are appropriate for Lancaster?
	8. Do you regularly attend Town Meeting(s)?
	9.  Do you regularly vote in the Town's Annual Election, typically held in May each year, where residents cast their votes to elect residents to certain Town Board and Committees?
	YES  NO
	10. The Select Board (SB) is currently made up of three (3) members. Communities with a SB/Town Meeting Form of Government have the ability to elect a three (3) member, five (5) member or seven (7) member Board. What do you believe to be the most adva...
	11. Lancaster's Board of Health (BOH) members are elected. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should BOH members be appointed by the Select Board?
	12. Lancaster's Finance Committee members are elected. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Finance Committee members be appointed by the Moderator, Select Board (SB) or another appointing authority?
	13. Lancaster's Library Trustees are elected. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Trustees be appointed by the Select Board?
	14. Lancaster's Planning Board members are elected. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Planning Board members be appointed by the Select Board?
	16. Lancaster's Conservation Commission members are appointed. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should Conservation members be elected by the Town Residents?
	17. Lancaster's Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) members are appointed. Do you believe this is in the best interest of Lancaster or should ZBA members be elected by the Town Residents?
	18. Do you believe it to be in the best interest of Lancaster to require that all Board, Committee and Commission members be current residents of Lancaster?
	19. How do you generally receive information about the Town Lancaster and its Government Operations?
	Do you have any topic suggestions which you believe the Government Study Committee should discuss or investigate?

	FY24 Grants Announcement.pdf
	Kate Hodges, Town Administrator        khodges@lancasterma.gov

	Budget & Purchasing Admin_Jul23.pdf
	GENERAL SUMMARY:
	ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS0F :
	 Familiarity with the principles and practices of public administration, financial accounting and reporting, pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, codes and regulations and principles and procedures of confidential and/or legally required record ...
	 Ability to operate a computer and various software packages necessary for assigned duties.
	 Proficiency in compiling, manipulating, and analyzing large amounts of financial data with accuracy and attention to detail.
	 Capability in understanding and developing processes and structures related to financial management, procurement, budgeting, and financial project oversight.
	 Competence in communicating clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing, and in maintaining effective relationships.

	WORKING CONDITIONS & PHYSICAL DEMANDS1F :

	Management Analyst.pdf
	ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:

	Lancaster_FMR_Update_Sep_2023.pdf
	Introduction
	Recommendation Status Summary
	Prior Recommendations
	New Recommendations
	Consider Key Structural Changes Through the Government Study Committee
	Revisit the Agreement with the Lancaster Sewer District
	Plan for Succession in Finance Departments

	Acknowledgements


	Group1: Off
	# Years: 
	Other please specify: 
	Other please specify_2: 
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Off
	Check Box35: Off
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off
	Check Box38: Off
	Do you have any topic suggestions which you believe the: 
	Check Box39: Off
	Check Box40: Off
	Check Box41: Off
	Check Box47: Off
	Check Box48: Off
	Check Box49: Off
	Check Box50: Off
	Check Box51: Off
	Check Box52: Off
	Check Box53: Off
	Check Box54: Off


